
 

 

 
Date of issue: 23rd February, 2010 

 
  

MEETING  AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 (Mr Kwatra (Chair), Councillors Chohan, Dale-Gough, 

Haines, Mann and Small) 
  
DATE AND TIME: THURSDAY, 4TH MARCH, 2010 AT 6.30 PM 
  
VENUE: COMMITTEE ROOM 2, TOWN HALL, BATH ROAD, 

SLOUGH 
  
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
OFFICER: 
(for all enquiries) 

 
CLAIRE GRAY 
01753 875120 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are requested to attend the above Meeting at the time and date indicated to deal 
with the business set out in the following agenda. 
 

 
 

RUTH BAGLEY 
Chief Executive 

 

NOTE TO MEMBERS 
This meeting is an approved duty for the payment of travel expenses. 

 
 

AGENDA 

 
PART 1 

 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD 

 Apologies for absence.   
 



 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD 

 

 

1.   Declarations of Interest 
 

  

2.   Minutes of the last meeting held on 3rd 
December 2009 
 

1 - 6 All 

3.   Internal Audit Plan 2010/11 
 

7 - 30 All 

4.   Internal Audit 3rd Quarter Update 
 

31 - 44  

5.   Annual Governance Statement Overview 
2009/10 
 

45 - 54 All 

6.   Signed Annual Governance Statement 
2008/09 
 

55 - 68 All 

7.   Audit Progress Report 
 

69 - 80 All 

8.   Certification of Claims and Returns - Annual 
Report 
 

81 - 94 All  

9.   Audit Opinion Plan 2009/10 
 

95 - 114 All 

 
   

 Press and Public  

   
You are welcome to attend this meeting which is open to the press and public, as an 
observer.  You will however be asked to leave before the Committee considers any items 
in the Part II agenda.  Special facilities may be made available for disabled or non-English 
speaking persons.  Please contact the Democratic Services Officer shown above for 
further details. 
 

 



Audit Committee – Meeting held on Thursday, 3rd December, 2009. 
 

Present:-  Mr Kwatra (Chair) Councillors Haines and Mann. 

  

Apologies for Absence:- Councillor Chohan, Dale-Gough and Small 
 

 
PART I 

 
19. Declarations of Interest  

 
Councillor Mann declared a personal interest in agenda item 3 – Procurement 
Report as his son worked for Oracle.   
 

20. Procurement Report  
 
The Assistant Director for Procurement introduced a report to the Committee 
which advised Members of projects that had been undertaken to ensure 
efficiency and financial savings in procurement.  The Assistant Director noted 
a number of different activities that had resulted in savings or cost avoidance 
for the Council.  There was also a number of future procurement projects that 
were underway which would result in savings for the Council. 
 
In response to a query from the Audit Commission the Assistant Director 
responded that the Procurement Strategy had yet to be finalised as items 
were continually being added to the strategy and it was therefore being 
reviewed as it was felt that it was important to ensure that the document was 
not overly burdensome. It was reported that the document should be finalised 
by the end of the calendar year. 
 
A Member asked what action the Council was taking to achieve efficiency 
savings in procurement in light of the shared services scheme.  The 
Committee were advised that the three Councils were liaising on all 
procurement issues that arose to take advantage of any opportunities for joint 
procurement.  The Assistant Director informed the Committee that the Oracle 
procurement system had been in place since July 2008 and one year’s worth 
of information was now able to be obtained from the system.  Each Service 
Area Manager was aware of the issues surrounding the procurement strategy 
and the steps that needed to be taken to improve.   
 
Resolved – That the Procurement update report be noted.   
 

21. Minutes of the last meeting held on 14th September 2009  
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 14th September, 2009 were agreed as a 
correct record. 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 2

Page 1



Audit Committee - 03.12.09 

 

22. Matters Arising  
 
The Audit Commission advised that the issues raised concerning the draft 
Annual Governance report and the Use of the Resources report had now 
been resolved.  The Council had approved a revised set of statement and the 
Audit Commission gave these a clean value for money conclusion.   
 

23. Treasury Management Presentation  
 
Aslam Abdulla, Head of Treasury Management made a presentation to the 
Committee which included information on different aspects of Treasury 
Management.  It was felt that it would be useful for the compliance reporting 
of Treasury Management to come to the Audit Committee.  At present a report 
was taken to Cabinet on a quarterly basis with information regarding treasury 
management in Slough.  Members were informed that the current policy was 
to invest in AA rated institutions; however, there were a number of 
investments which were currently in building societies with an A rating.  
Members were advised that the treasury management at present was very 
good. The Director of  Resources noted that treasury management was a 
complex area of finance and Councillors were reminded that, as the stewards 
of public funds, accountability needed to be associated with responsibility.  
Councillors had a duty to ensure that the investment strategy was sound.  
Members were advised that the role of the Audit Committee was to monitor 
compliance with the CIPFA rules. The performance of  treasury management 
was a scrutiny function of the Council.  An officer present from the Audit 
Commission noted that the decision making role in Treasury Management fell 
to the Cabinet and the Finance Director.   
 
The Chair of the Audit Committee questioned who should monitor the day-to-
day compliance of the Treasury Management Policy.  The Section 151 Officer 
had this responsibility and the Audit Committee would monitor the systems 
and controls which were in place to hold the Section 151 Officer to account.  
The Audit Committee’s responsibility was also to ensure that the treasury 
functions were discharged in a way that complied with the strategy set out.   
A Member was concerned about dividing the compliance and performance 
areas of treasury management and felt that because of this some issues 
could fall through the monitoring process and not be picked up by either side.  
The Head of Internal Audit and Risk  Management (HoIARM) advised that an 
annual audit was carried out and a reporting line and monitoring were in 
place.  A regular periodic item on how the treasury management function met 
the strategy rules and criteria could be reported to the Audit Committee.   
 
 
Resolved –  It was agreed that the format for future reporting for Treasury 

Management to the Audit Committee would be agreed with the 
Chair.   

 
24. Audit Commission - Audit Progress Report November 2009  

 

Page 2



Audit Committee - 03.12.09 

 

Alistair Rankin, who had recently taken over as the new Area Audit Manager 
presented the report to the Committee which detailed the plans for the Audit 
Commission’s work over the forthcoming year.  This would be reported as a 
regular item to the Audit Committee in future.  The progress report showed 
the planned development from the start of the 2009/10 Audit cycle.  In 
response to a question Members were advised that a shared services review 
had not been fully scoped but this was currently underway.  It was noted that 
the workforce planning area of Use of Resources was a new KLOE area, as 
was medium term planning.   
 
Resolved – That the Audit Progress Report be noted. 
 

25. Audit Commission - Use of Resources report  
 
Phil Sharman, of the Audit Commission presented a report which had 
previously been circulated in draft to the September meeting.  A number of 
recommendations were contained in an action plan provided as an appendix 
to the report.  The recommendations made in the action plan would be 
tracked to monitor their implementation.  Officers suggested that it  may be 
useful to have a traffic light system in place for monitoring actions.  The 
HoIARM advised that a tracker had been developed for all external agencies’ 
recommendations and would be brought to the Committee in the future.   
 
A Member asked about the financial road map mentioned in an Appendix to 
the report.  The Audit Commission noted that their publication on  world class 
management could be used to track and create a financial road map.  The 
Audit Commission advised that the Council would need to move from an 
annual to a medium term financial view which would be included in the 
financial road map.  The road map needed to ensure that it clearly explained 
the strategic choices that could be made over the long term.  A sensitivity 
analysis would be included on what could be achieved with differing levels of 
financial settlements.  When the budget settlement was received each 
scenario should already be planned in order to advance.  Members were also 
asked to note that an Annual Audit letter was due to go to Council at the next 
meeting. This was earlier than usual as it was not normally submitted until the 
Council meeting in March.   
 
Resolved – That the Resources Report be noted. 
 

26. Work of Internal Audit - 2nd Quarter 2009/10  
 
The HoIARM presented a report to the Committee which included information 
on the work of Internal Audit from July to September, 2009.  Members were 
informed of work on counter fraud arrangements.  An anti-fraud and 
corruption policy had been created and training for this was provided, 
including a web based training package which cost approximately £1500 per 
year.  The course could be taken by officers and Members whenever desired.  
A Member raised concerns regarding the local fraud hot line not functioning 
out of hours. It was felt that a number of instances of fraud were going under 
the radar.  The HoIARM advised that the Head of Benefit Fraud could attend 

Page 3



Audit Committee - 03.12.09 

 

the next meeting to explain further the outcome of their anti-fraud initiatives. 
Information on the prosecution of antifraud cases that had been brought to 
light would also be included.  The HoIARM highlighted the areas that came 
under the responsibility of Internal Audit with relation to fraud.  The only areas 
that fell outside of the scope of Audit were housing and council tax benefit, 
dealt with by the Housing Benefit Fraud Unit and electoral register queries 
which were dealt with by the Electoral Registration section.   
 
 
A Member raised an issue regarding the whistleblowing policy and asked 
whether there was any proof that it was effective in practice.  Officers 
responded that the whilstleblowing was also included in training sessions and  
reporting on its effectiveness would be brought to a future meeting of the 
Committee. 
 
The report detailed areas in which Internal Audit had issued recommendations 
but the recommendations had not been implemented.  With regard to the 
issue at the previous meeting concerning Physical Disability, Other Care and 
Support,  Members were advised that the recommendations had now been 
implemented. It was confirmed that if there were any recommendations that 
had not been implemented then officers would be invited to attend the 
Committee to present the reasons why these had not taken place.  A Member 
asked for the number of people who had care plans with Slough Borough 
Council and it was agreed that this would be provided.  
 
In response to a question the HoIARM detailed the investigation into the 
financial irregularities at Longcroft Care Home.  Members were advised that 
the staff member involved was not in a position to pay back the money.  
However, for the police to go ahead with a prosecution they required a 
forensic accountant’s report.  At a low estimate this would cost approximately 
£8,000 and it was felt that the cost could not be justified, especially when it 
was unlikely that any of the monies would be returned.  Some money had 
been reimbursed to clients and some had been written off.   Officers advised 
that they had looked at the other large residential homes and these were 
found to be acceptable.  There had been a breakdown of controls at Longcroft 
with a long standing member of staff.  The other smaller residential 
establishments were due to be reviewed and any issues would be looked at 
again on a risk basis.   
 
Members were advised of the current high profile of risk management and this 
had been reported to the Corporate Management Team.  The roll out of the 
software packages for risk management had been delayed but had recently 
been rolled out.  Risk registers had been recirculated to the relevant 
department and data had been collated.  This would be presented to the next 
meeting. Members were advised that this was a living document with a 
number of amendments being made on a recurring basis.  Members were 
advised of the risk management training sessions that would be taking place 
and were informed that it was exceptionally important for Members of the 
Audit Committee to attend.  It was agreed that the corporate risk register and 

Page 4



Audit Committee - 03.12.09 

 

the five departmental risk registers would be submitted to the next meeting of 
the Audit Committee to provide examples of detail in risks 
 
The HoIARM gave a briefing on the Annual Governance Statement (AGS)on 
the systems of internal control with the final accounts. The AGS advised 
whether the governance arrangements in the organisation were affective and 
whether any areas of concerns had been identified.  Members were advised 
that the Leader and the Chief Executive sign off on the AGS.   
 
Resolved  –  That the 2nd Quarter Report be noted and that the actions be 

approved as detailed above.   
 

27. Date of the next meeting  
 
The date of the next meeting was confirmed as 4th March, 2010. 
 
 

Chair 
 
 
(Note: The Meeting opened at 6.30 pm and closed at 8.23 pm) 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



Internal Audit Plans 

Strategic Plan 2010/2013, Annual Plan 2010/2011 

 

1 Audit Committee Overview 2 

2 Internal Audit Strategy 2 

3 Service delivery 3 

3.1 Internal Audit Service provision arrangements 3 

3.2 Resources and skills 3 

4 How Internal Audit provides assurance for the Annual Governance Statement 3 

5 Determining the Programme 4 

5.1 Determining the mix of work 4 

5.2 The Internal Audit strategic and annual plans (risk based) 5 

5.3 Fraud, Contingency and Whistleblowing 5 

5.4 Responsibility for Fraud 5 

6 Delivering the audit plan 6 

7 People 1st Slough 6 

8 Performance Indicators for audit 7 

9 Contacts in Internal Audit 7 

Appendix 1: Strategic Internal Audit Plan, 2010-2013 8 

Appendix 2: Slough’s Internal Audit Charter 15 

Appendix 3: Preparation of the Plan 22 

AGENDA ITEM 3

Page 7



1 Audit Committee Overview 

1.1 Internal Audit’s function is to report on the adequacy of the Council’s control 

environment in achieving its objectives. It does this by working in partnership with 

management, but from an independent and objective standpoint. 

1.2 The Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management (HoIARM) presents the following 

to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis: 

• A summary of all finalised audit reports, recommendations made and agreed and 
an up date on recommendations implemented. Where significant 
recommendations are not agreed these are also brought to the attention of the 
committee 

• A summary of irregularity reviews and other significant audit reviews 

• An update on governance within the organisation 

• An update on Risk Management issues within the organisation 

• An update on the Annual Governance Statement and significant issues arising. 

   

1.3 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2006 amended the Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2003. The amended legislation required changes to some aspects of 

Internal Audit Practice. The application of these changes in Slough BC is discussed 

in Appendix 3 

2 Internal Audit Strategy  

2.1 The overall Strategy of Internal Audit at Slough Borough Council is: 

“to deliver a risk based audit plan in a professional, independent manner, to 
provide Slough Borough Council with an opinion on the level of assurance it 
can place on the internal control environment, and to make recommendations 
to improve it.” 

2.2 The Internal Audit strategy comprises two parts.  The first part deals with how the 
service is delivered and includes: 

• an indication of the service provision arrangements; (see section 3.1) 

• an indication of the resources and skills required to deliver the strategy; (see 
section 3.2) 

• a description of how Internal Audit provides assurance for the Annual Governance 
Statement; (see section 4) and 

• an indication of the mix of work to be undertaken, analysed by assurance work 
and other consultancy and/or fraud-related work and in accordance with a risk-
based approach to planning. (see section 5) 

2.3 The second part of the strategy deals with the more detailed plan of the assignments 
to be carried out during the period of the plan.  (see Appendices 1 and 3) 

Page 8



3 Service delivery  

3.1 Internal Audit  service provision arrangements 

3.1.1 This has to be considered against the backdrop of legislation that impacts upon 
Internal Audit in local authorities. 

3.1.2 Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires every local authority to 
make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to ensure 
that one of its officers has responsibility for the administration of those affairs.  This 
officer is the Strategic Director of Resources. 

3.1.3 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (as amended – 2006) state that an 
English Local Authority must “maintain an adequate and effective system of internal 
audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control in accordance 
with the proper practices in relation to internal control.” 

3.1.4 The Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management is accountable to the Audit 
Committee, and the Council, for the Internal Audit function of the Authority.  

3.1.5 The Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management is also responsible for Risk 
Management within the Authority which feeds into the corporate governance 
arrangements of the organisation. 

3.2 Resources and skills 

3.2.1 The Internal Audit strategy is delivered by the in-house team of 7 staff. 2 auditor 

posts and one audit manager post are currently vacant. 

3.2.2 The use of partnering arrangements has been negotiated through existing tendered 

contracts undertaken by neighbouring authorities. The skills mix of a partnership 

arrangement, which assures the availability of the latest IT audit skills, is considered 

to be the best arrangement to deliver the audit strategy at this time. 

3.2.3 The Internal Audit unit is staffed by a mix of, part qualified accountants, auditors 

holding the Diploma in Public Audit, a Certified Information Systems Auditor (CISA), 

a qualified accountant and those qualified by experience. The training profile for 

each auditor is kept under review, and all efforts are made to provide identified 

training needs, thereby keeping each auditor’s skills set current. 

4 How Internal Audit provides assurance for the Annual 
Governance Statement. 

4.1  Regulation 4 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations, 2003, as amended by 
Regulation 4 of the Accounts and Audit (Amendment)(England) Regulations, 2006 
requires the “relevant body” to publish a statement on internal control (SIC), annually 
with its accounts. It says that the responsibility for maintaining and reviewing the 
system of internal control rests with the relevant body. 

4.2 The statement on internal control has been replaced by the Annual Governance 
Statement from 01/04/07. The statement will be produced for the financial year to 
31/03/09. 

Page 9



4.3 The Annual Governance Statement working group is chaired by the Strategic 
Director of Resources. The group is comprised of a variety of representatives from 
across the organisation at Assistant Director level. 

4.4 The Terms of Reference of the AGS working group are outlined below: 

• Challenge and evaluate sources of assurance provided by officers 

• Challenge and evaluate evidence provided to support assurances 

• Ensure that areas of development in relation to Slough BC are clearly 
identified for inclusion in the AGS 

• Monitor the production of action plans to address development needs in 
Slough BC 

• Consider partnerships and highlight any control issues specifically if this has 
Ø seriously prejudiced or prevented achievement of a principal 

objective 
Ø resulted in a need to seek additional funding to allow the issue to 

be resolved or has resulted in a significant diversion of resources 
from another aspect of the business 

Ø had a material impact on the accounts 
Ø been considered significant by the Audit Panel 
Ø been reported by the Head of Internal Audit as significant in the 

annual opinion on the internal control environment 
Ø attracted significant public interest or has seriously damaged the 

reputation of the organisation 
Ø resulted in formal action being taken by the Strategic Director of 

Resources and/or the Monitoring Officer 

4.5  Through its programme of work, (which is detailed in the rolling Strategic Plan and is 
updated annually) determined by means of risk assessment and by application of the 
standards as prescribed in the CIPFA code of Internal Audit practice, Internal Audit is 
in a position to provide independent and objective assurance across the whole range 
of the authority’s activities.  Internal Audit can also provide details of any 
weaknesses that qualify this assurance, and bring to the attention of the authority 
any issues particularly relevant to the preparation of the AGS. 

4.6 Internal Audit alone cannot provide complete assurance over all aspects of internal 
control.  Other sources of assurances for the AGS include the Risk Management 
framework in the organisation, departmental assurances, external audit and other 
review bodies and inspectorates. 

5 Determining the Programme   

5.1 Determining the mix of work 

5.1.1  The programme and mix of work of Internal Audit is laid out in the Strategic Internal 
Audit plan at Appendix 1.  The preparation of the plan is detailed in Appendix 3.   

5.1.2 The Strategic Internal Audit Plan covers a rolling 3-year cycle — currently 
2010/2013.  The Plan assumes that resources available to Internal Audit will remain 
the same, and is based on the current structure of the Council, although recognising 
that change is inevitable. 

5.1.3 Where possible Internal Audit take into account the risk register / business plans for 

each department. The main source of new / current concerns and risks are the pre-

audit plan discussions with each Assistant Director and Director in each department. 

Page 10



5.1.4 The Strategic Audit Plan for 2010/2013 is attached at Appendix 1.   

5.2 The Internal Audit strategic and annual plans (risk based) 

5.2.1 The detailed preparation of the plan is outlined in Appendix 3.  This section gives a 
brief summary about the plan. 

5.2.2 Audits are either planned or non-planned (i.e. contingency). Planned audits are 
divided into core and non-core audits. Core audits are normally carried out annually 
and cover the core/fundamental systems of the authority. Non-core systems are 
carried out less frequently. The audits are prioritised by a risk weighting system, by 
means of which the number of days allocated to each audit and the frequency of the 
audit reflect the risk within the system. Sufficient provision is made for contingency 
audits and whistleblowing investigations 

5.2.3 Four categories of risk factors are used in the weighting / allocation of resources — 
Corporate Importance, Corporate Sensitivity, Inherent Risk and Control Risk. 

5.2.4 All Directors and assistant directors are consulted in the preparation of the plan.  The 

external auditor is also consulted and the plan is then finalised after taking the views 

of the Strategic Director of Resources and the Audit Committee. 

5.3 Fraud, Contingency and Whistleblowing. 

5.3.1 A major part of the audit plan is devoted to contingency audits.  Contingency Audits 
include mainly special (reactive) investigations and occasionally high-priority ad-hoc 
reviews.    

5.3.2 Whistleblowing is formalised in Governance arrangements and a new policy was 
agreed by the Council in late 2007. 

5.4 Responsibility for Fraud 

5.4.1 The responsibilities and duties of Internal Audit and management tend to become 
blurred in fraud investigation.  It is pertinent to quote from the Code of Practice for 
Internal Audit in Local Government in the UK (published by CIPFA in 2006): 

“Managing the risk of fraud and corruption is the responsibility of 
management. 

The Head of Internal Audit should make arrangements, within the 
organisation’s anti-fraud and anti-corruption policies, to be notified of 
all suspected or detected fraud, corruption or impropriety, to inform 
their opinion on the internal control environment and Internal Audit’s 
work programme. 

At the request of management, Internal Audit may go beyond the work 
needed to meet its assurance responsibilities and assist with, for 
example, the investigation of suspected fraud or corruption. 

Internal Audit does not have responsibility for the prevention or 
detection of fraud and corruption.  Internal Auditors should, however, be 
alert in all their work to risks and exposures that could allow fraud and 
corruption and to any indications that fraud or corruption may have 
been occurring.  Audit procedures alone, even when performed with due 

Page 11



professional care, cannot guarantee that fraud or corruption will be 
detected.” 

5.4.2 It is Internal Audit’s role, once fraud is suspected, to investigate fraud and report to 
management.  However, management’s important role should not be underrated.  In 
most cases, during the investigation, Internal Audit will work in partnership with 
management.  Before commencing the investigation, however, Internal Audit need to 
ensure that management has carried out its initial checks to ascertain whether the 
incident or event concerned is suspected to be fraudulent.  By ensuring this, Internal 
Audit time will be spent more productively.  This approach will also ensure that 
management accepts its responsibility with regard to fraud investigations.  

6 Delivering the audit plan 

6.1 The second part of the strategy deals with the more detailed plan of the assignments 
to be carried out during the period of the plan.  

6.2 The first year of the plan is the annual operational plan. The plan is subject to 
change as the local authority environment is not static, and is subject to changing 
risks and priorities.  Also sometimes areas that were planned to be audited are not 
yet in an auditable ‘state’ e.g. new systems are still being implemented. The plan 
needs to be kept current to reflect changing risk profiles/topicality. The plan is 
therefore kept under review and where changes are necessary, the plan is changed 
with the agreement of the Strategic Director of Resources, the External Auditor and 
the Audit Panel. 

6.3 A rigorous quality control procedure is in place and is reviewed on a regular basis to 
ensure a high quality audit product is delivered. At the start of each audit the auditor 
researches the audit area and obtains an “understanding of the business”. The 
auditee is interviewed and an initial risk assessment undertaken from which a terms 
of reference for the audit is agreed with the auditee. The risk assessment also 
informs the audit testing schedule which is applied during the audit fieldwork stage. 
The auditee is kept informed of findings during the course of the audit and an exit 
meeting held to confirm accuracy of findings and to inform the client of areas which 
may be reported on. A draft report is issued to the auditee and upon receiving a 
response to the discussed report a final report is issued. 

6.4 Each stage of the audit process is reviewed by the Audit Managers and the HOIARM 
and auditors address and action any points raised. 

7 People 1
st
 Slough 

7.1 People 1
st 
Slough, an Arms Length Management Company, was created on 01 

January 2006. The Council is the sole owner of this company.  The functions that 
transferred to People 1

st
 Slough were 

• Rent collection 

• Tenant information, consultancy and tenant participation 

• Enforcement of tenancy conditions and similar for leaseholds 

• Administration of Right to Buy 

• Stock investment decisions and repairs orders 

• Managing tenancies, voids and under occupation 

• Estate management 

Page 12



• Quality and performance monitoring 

The remaining housing activities like Homelessness, Rehousing, Improvement 
Grants etc. and Strategic and Client functions remain with the Council. 

7.2 The application for the “delegation of management functions” and the “management 
agreement” define the relationships, systems and controls under which People 1st 
Slough operates. 

7.3 Internal Audit also provides the Internal Audit Service to People 1
st  
Slough. A more 

detailed Internal Audit plan for the organisation is published separately. Internal Audit 
has the right of access to all personnel, documents, and computer systems etc of the 
Company. In addition a separate SLA has been agreed between Slough BC and 
People 1

st
 Slough specifically for Internal Audit.  

7.4 On 18
th
 January 2010 Commissioners supported the proposal not to renew the 

People 1
st
 Slough contract and provide services in-house. It was agreed that a two 

month consultation with tenants on bringing the service back in house should be 
undertaken and the results brought back to Cabinet  before the end of March 2010. 

7.5 The audit plan has not been amended to reflect any changes in the status of People 
1
st
 Slough. The plan will be updated once Cabinet has made a final decision on the 

options for the Provision of Housing Management Services. 

8 Performance Indicators for audit 

8.1 At a time when all are being urged to deliver better services, it is right that audit can 
itself demonstrate improvements in service.  For this purpose a number of 
performance indicators as stated below are used. These are reported quarterly to the 
Audit Committee. 

8.2 It should however be stated at the outset that interpretation of these indicators must 
be undertaken carefully, and a balanced view taken.  Performance indicators cannot 
be used in isolation as reliable measures of performance since other factors may 
also need to be taken into account.  They may highlight areas that may merit closer 
attention. 

8.3 The indicators used are 

• percentage of planned work completed in period (target 95%  for 2010/11) 

• percentage of recommendations accepted (90%) 

• percentage of recommendations implemented after agreed period (no target) 

• results of client satisfaction survey (no target) 

Page 13



9 Contacts in Internal Audit 

Sudhi Pathak Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management 
 01753875374 

Jacky Cope Audit Manager  
 01753875394 

Phil Brown Senior Risk And Insurance Officer  
 01753875673 

Page 14



  Appendix 1 

Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2010/13 

Auditable area Audit  
2010/11 

Audit  
2011/12 

Audit  
2012/13 

3 years 
total 

Central financial systems         
Treasury 10 10 10 30 

Capital Finance 10 10 10 30 

VAT 10 10 10 30 

Financial Planning  10 10 10 30 

Budgetary Control 10 10 10 30 

Creditors 15 15 15 45 

Payroll 15 15 15 45 

Debtors 15 15 15 45 

Cashiers 10 10 10 30 

Pensions 6 6 6 18 

General Ledger
 
 15 15 15 45 

Petty cash and imprest systems 10 10 10 30 

Procurement 15 15 15 45 

Revenues and Benefits         

NNDR 12 12 12 36 

Council Tax billing & collection 10 10 10 30 

Benefits systems (Control & systems teams)         

Council Tax & Housing Benefits 10 10 10 30 

Discretionary Housing Payments 10     10 

Central financial systems Total 193 183 183 559 

          

Corporate Issues         

Significant Projects (to be agreed with CMT) 35 35 35 105 

Workforce Planning 15 15 15 45 

Partnership working (cross cutting) 15 15 15 45 

Performance Management 15 15 15 45 

Service Planning 15 15 15 45 

Data Quality 10 10 10 30 

CRC Energy Efficiency Scheme 15 15 15 45 

Acheivemnet of efficiency  and savings targets   15 15 30 

Risk Management 10 10 10 30 

Insurance 10 10 10 30 

Health & Safety including Occupational Health 10 10 10 30 

Grants reviews 15 15 15 45 

Proactive anti-fraud work 20 20 20 60 

NFI 30 30 30 90 

Corporate Issues 215 230 230 675 

          

Resources Directorate         

          

Law & Corporate Governance         

Annual Governance Statement 15 15 15 45 

Corporate Governance75 15 15 15 45 

Committee Services 10     10 

Member Allowances and expenses     8 8 

Mayoralty & Civic Expenses (Including car) 10     10 

Electoral Registration   10   10 

Elections   10 10 20 

Local Land Charges     10 10 

Law & Corporate Governance totals 50 50 58 158 

          

Page 15



Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2010/13 

Auditable area Audit  
2010/11 

Audit  
2011/12 

Audit  
2012/13 

3 years 
total 

Human Resources         

Recruitment (process)   10   10 

Pertemps     10 10 

Absence management  10     10 

Pay and Renumeration 15 15 15 45 

Human Resources totals 25 25 25 75 

          

Facilities         

Corporate Landlord 10 10 10 30 

Property and Asset Management 10 10 10 30 

Postal & DIP     10 10 

Facilities Totals 20 20 30 70 

          

Resources Directorate Totals 95 95 113 303 

          

Improvement and Development         

LAA/PSA 20 20 20 60 

Investigations Unit     10 10 

Britwell Talk Shop      7 7 

Concessionary Fares Administration 10     10 

Customer Services Centre – CRM   10   10 

Customer Services Centre – Telephones 10     10 

Customer Services Centre – Training   10   10 

Cippenham & Langley Library     10 10 

Staff training & development     10 10 

Improvement and Development Totals 40 40 57 137 

          

Chief Executive         

Data Protection and FoI   10   10 

Communications News       10 10 

Events Administration Including Festival & Bonfire   10   10 

Printing   15   15 

Chief Executive Totals 0 35 10 45 

Page 16



 

Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2010/13 

Auditable area Audit  
2010/11 

Audit  
2011/12 

Audit  
2012/13 

3 years 
total 

Education & Children's Services         

Primary schools         

Castleview 6     6 

Cippenham Infants    6   6 

Cippenham Junior     6 6 

Claycotts    6   6 

Colnbrook    6   6 

Foxborough   6 6 12 

Godolphin Infants   6   6 

Godolphin Juniors    6   6 

Holy family   6   6 

James Elliman 6     6 

Khalsa Primary     10 10 

Iqra     10 10 

Lynch Hill   6   6 

Marish Primary 6     6 

Montem Primary     6 6 

Our Lady of Peace Infant 6     6 

Our Lady of Peace Junior     6 6 

Parlaunt Park Primary   6   6 

Pippins     6 6 

Priory    6   6 

Ryvvers 6     6 

St Anthonys 6     6 

Saint Ethlbert 6     6 

Saint Marys CE 6     6 

Western house 6     6 

Wexham Court 6     6 

William Penn  6     6 

FMiS certification of schools audited in 2006-07 20 20 20 60 

Secondary Schools       0 

Baylis Court Secondary  10     10 

Beechwood  10     10 

Herschel 10     10 

Langley Grammar 10     10 

Langley Academy (Previously Langley Wood) 10     10 

Saint Bernard's     10 10 

Slough & Eton      10 10 

Slough Grammar     10 10 

St Joseph's Catholic High     10 10 

The Westgate 10     10 

Wexham     10 10 

Special Schools         

Littledown    6   6 

Arbour Vale 6     6 

Haybrook college     10 10 

Nursery Schools         

Slough Early Years 6     6 

Baylis Court Nursery   6   6 

Chalvey Early Years   6   6 

Cippenham Nursery     6 6 

Lea Nursery     6 6 

Page 17



 

Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2010/13 

Auditable area Audit  
2010/11 

Audit  
2011/12 

Audit  
2012/13 

3 years 
total 

Other         

Nursery Grant & Payments 10     10 

Redundancy/teachers pensions 6     6 

Schools Finance Support   6   6 

Mandatory and discretionary student awards 8     8 

Home to school transport   10   10 

School admissions     10 10 

School catering - contract   10   10 

School catering - own provision     10 10 

Advisory Service   10   10 

Early Years/childcare grant including Early years Funding   10   10 

 Music Service     10 10 

Central EMAG/ Refugees   10   10 

Governor Services & Training 6     6 

Education Welfare Offices     10 10 

Inclusion         

Education Psychology Service   10   10 

Behaviour Support Team 7     7 

SEN Including recoupment   10   10 

Youth Service 10   10 20 

Parent Partnership service   5   5 

Breakaway                                     6     6 

Youth Offending Team                          15     15 

Health Improvement Team   12   12 

Children and Families         

Looked After Services 10     10 

C W D Team                                    10     10 

C&F Fieldwork Teams                          8     8 

C&F Assessment Team                   10     10 

Mallards 10     10 

Placement budgets     10 10 

Fostering     10 10 

Children with Disabilities Register           8     8 

Adoption Services   10   10 

Services for children leaving care 8     8 

Asylum Seekers -unaccompanied children   15   15 

MALTS     12 12 

Transition Planning (C&F and C&CS)     10 10 

Contact Point   10   10 

Petty Cash (Children and Families) 6     6 

Building schools for the future     15 15 

LSC Transfer   10   10 

Cross Cutting Issues         

Youth Crime Action Plan   12   12 

Commissioning   12   12 

Prevent   12   12 

Education & Children's Services totals 296 272 249 817 

Page 18



 

Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2010/13 

Auditable area Audit  
2010/11 

Audit  
2011/12 

Audit  
2012/13 

3 years 
total 

Community and Well Being         

          

Safeguarding arrangements 15 15 15 45 

Life Long Learning/Adult Education Service     10 10 

Leisure Management (including the Centre)     10 10 

Community Services Facilites Property Management 10     10 

Haymill Community Hall   10   10 

Central Library   8   8 

Britwell Library     8 8 

Libraries - IT   6   6 

Creative Academy   10   10 

West Wing     10 10 

Lettings management 10     10 

Social Care Debt Management   10   10 

Appointeeship (Power of Attornery) 10     10 

Joint Equipment     10 10 

Hospital Care Teams   8   8 

Community Social Work Teams   8   8 

Nursing homes - commissioning & expenditure 10     10 

Hanover Contract (Pines and Northampton) 10     10 

Domicilary Care - Block Contracts   10   10 

Domicilary  Care service (in house)                          10 10 

Home Care-Community Laundry                   6     6 

Frail/Illness Grants to VO's (M50 & 51c & M80c)   6   6 

Community Meals                                 6   6 

Direct Payments   10   10 

Physical Disability & Sensory Impairment Team       0 

Sensory Needs Team 6     6 

 OT Team                                       10     10 

 Sloughability                                   8   8 

 Physical Disability-Other Care & support        8   8 

Learning Disabilities       0 

 Learning Disability-Residential                 10   10 

 Respond                                         6   6 

 Lavender Court                                    6 6 

 Lascelles House                                 6   6 

Supported Living - Procedures 8     8 

 Priors Day Services                           8     8 

Eliman & Langley Resource Units                    10   10 

Mental Health Service       0 

Slough Community Mental Health 10     10 

Nursing Homes Placmts & Residential             10 10 

 Mental health - cash & kind assistance                          6   6 

DAAT   6   6 

Other Adult Services       0 

 Speedwell Enterprises                         10     10 

Service Strategy, Regulation & Directors Off.       0 

 Commissioning Team & Supporting People                          10     10 

Respond     8 8 

 Quality Assurance/inspection                    10   10 

Personalisation 5     5 

Community and Well Being Totals 138 177 97 412 

Page 19



 

Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2010/13 

Auditable area Audit  
2010/11 

Audit  
2011/12 

Audit  
2012/13 

3 years 
total 

Green & Built Environment         
Careline     10 10 

CCTV   8   8 

Trading Standards 8     8 

Environmental Services   8   8 

Environmental Quality   8   8 

Licencing   10   10 

Cemetery & Crematorium   10   10 

Business Support (previously Consumer Protection Support)     10 10 

Registrars (including Citizenship ceremonies)   7   7 

Slough Enterprise Partnership Agreement     15 15 

Wexham Nursery 15     15 

Building Control     12 12 

Planning Policy & Projects 10 10 10 30 

Development Control 10     10 

S.106 agreements 10     10 

Transportation Planning 10     10 

Car Parks - Contract monitoring and control     15 15 

Traffic Management & Road Safety   10   10 

Highways - (Highways Maintnce and dev, Street works, Asset 
Management and Drainage, Street lighting)   

15     15 

Public Transport (contracts & concessions)     10 10 

Community Safety 10     10 

Transportation capital programme         10     10 

Drugs and Alcohol Action Team   10   10 

Food and Safey     10 10 

Emergency Planning 10     10 

Neighbourhood enforcement   10   10 

Housing Service       0 

Improvement grants     8 8 

Disabled Facilities Grant     10 10 

Housing Advice & Homelessness     8 8 

Temporary accomodation   6   6 

Housing development/enabling 8     8 

Enforcements - Housing Standards Enforcement 10     10 

Family Intervention Project   10   10 

Green & Built Environment totals 126 107 118 351 

          
People 1st (ALMO) - internal audit contract         

          
Corporate Governance and Risk Management 10 10 10 30 

Cash/Bank Control & Interface with Council Bank Reconciliation 10     10 

Partnership (Interserve)   12   12 

Rents including IT issues 20 15 15 50 

Housing Management 10 10 10 30 

Right to buy     10 10 

Creditors 10 10 10 30 

Leaseholder Charges     10 10 

Supported Housing   10   10 

VAT     7 7 

Complaints 6     6 

People 1st (ALMO) totals 66 67 72 205 

Page 20



 

Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2010/13 

Auditable area Audit  
2010/11 

Audit  
2011/12 

Audit  
2012/13 

3 years 
total 

IT Audits         
Network Infrastructure 15 TBC TBC   

Wireless and VPN 10 TBC TBC   

Programme Management 8 TBC TBC   

IT Strategy 8 TBC TBC   

IAS application and operating system 16 TBC TBC   

IT inventory (asset tagging) 10 TBC TBC   

FLARE and Operating System 16 TBC TBC   

IT Audits total 83 70 70 223 

          
Total audit days 1252 1276 1199 3727 

          

Available days 1407 1407 1407 4221 

          

Contingency/follow ups/advice - days available 155 131 208 494 

Contingency % 11 9 15 12 

Page 21



Slough Borough Council Internal Audit Charter Appendix 2 

1 Introduction 

1.1 Internal Audit at Slough Borough Council operates within a framework that allows: 

• unrestricted access to senior management, and Councillors 

• reporting in its own name; 

• segregation from line operations. 

1.2 Every effort is made to preserve objectivity by ensuring that all members of audit 
staff are free from any conflicts of interest and do not undertake any non-audit 
duties, with the exception of security advice and other high-priority duties which are 
performed at the request of Senior Management because of the practical 
requirements at Slough Borough Council. 

1.3 All Internal Audit activity is carried out in accordance with the Financial Procedure 
Rules. 

1.4 The existence of Internal Audit does not diminish the responsibility of management 
to establish systems of internal control to ensure that activities are conducted in a 
secure, efficient and well-ordered manner. 

2 Financial Procedure Rules   

Overall arrangements 

2.1 Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations requires the Authority to maintain 
an adequate and effective system of internal audit of its accounting records and of its 
system of internal control in accordance with the proper practices in relation to internal 
control.  These responsibilities are delegated by the Borough Council to the Strategic 
Director of Resources who is responsible for maintaining an adequate and effective 
system of internal audit of the Authority’s accounting records and control systems as a 
contribution to the proper economic, efficient and effective use of resources. 

2.2 To ensure independence and objectivity Internal Audit operates within a framework 
that allows the Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management unrestricted access to 
senior management and the Executive and the Head of Internal Audit and Risk 
Management to report in their own name without fear or favour to all officers or 
Members particularly those charged with governance. The Head of Audit has access 
to meet the Chair of the Audit Committee in private. 

2.3 The Strategic Director of Resources is responsible, in conjunction with the Head of 
Internal Audit and Risk Management, for having procedures in place to ensure 
compliance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in 
the United Kingdom. The guidance accompanying the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations state that proper internal auditing practices are those contained within the 
Cipfa Code. Cipfa brought out a revised edition of the code in December 2006; 
Section 4 below explains how Slough Borough Council meets the requirements of this 
code.  

2.4 The Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management, in consultation with the Strategic 
Director of Resources, is responsible for ensuring the preparation of strategic and 
annual audit plans which take account of the characteristics and relative risks of the 
activities involved.   

Page 22



2.5 The Strategic Director of Resources is responsible for ensuring that effective 
procedures are in place to investigate promptly any fraud or irregularity. 

2.6 The Strategic Director of Resources is responsible for ensuring there is adequate 
liaison between external and internal audit. 

Access to information 

2.7 The Authority’s internal auditors have the authority to: 

a. access Authority premises at all times. 

b. access all assets, records, documents, correspondence and control    
systems.  

c. receive any information and explanation considered necessary concerning 
any matter under consideration. 

d. require any employee of the authority to account for cash, stores or any other 
authority asset under his or her control. 

e. access records belonging to third parties, such as contractors, when    
required. 

f. directly access the Chief Executive, the Executive, Audit Committee and any 
other committees and those charged with governance. 

2.8 Strategic Directors are responsible for ensuring that 

a. internal auditors are given access at all reasonable times to premises, 
personnel, documents and assets that the auditors consider necessary for the 
purposes of their work 

b. auditors are provided with any information and explanations that they seek in 
the course of their work 

c. recommendations in audit reports are considered and responded to promptly 

d. any agreed actions arising from audit recommendations are carried out in a 
timely and efficient fashion 

e. the Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management is notified immediately of 
any suspected or    identified fraud, theft, irregularity, improper use or 
misappropriation of the Authority’s property or resources.  Pending 
investigation and reporting, the Strategic Directors should take all necessary 
steps to prevent further loss and to secure records and documentation 
against removal or alteration 

f. new systems for maintaining financial records, or records of assets, or 
changes to such systems, are discussed with and agreed by the Head of 
Internal Audit and Risk Management prior to implementation. 

2.9 The Strategic Director of Resources is responsible for ensuring that external auditors 
are given access at all reasonable times to premises, personnel, documents and 
assets that the external auditors consider necessary for the purposes of their work. 

Page 23



2.10 Chief Officers are responsible for ensuring that all records and systems are up to date 
and available for inspection.   

 Preventing fraud and corruption 

2.11 Chief Officers are responsible for having systems of internal control in place that help 
to prevent and detect fraud and corruption.   

2.12 The Strategic Director of Resources is responsible for having arrangements in place 
for the development and maintenance of an anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy. 

2.13 All suspected and identified irregularities must be reported to the Head of Internal 
Audit.  

2.14 The Strategic Director of Resources is responsible for having arrangements in place 
for the investigation of suspected irregularities and for liaison with the police. 

2.15 Chief Officers should instigate the Authority’s disciplinary procedures where the 
outcome of an audit investigation indicates improper behaviour. 

2.16 Chief Officers are responsible for providing information required by the   Audit 
Commission’s National Fraud Initiative. 

2.17 The Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management is the designated Council’s money 
laundering officer and is responsible for ensuring that appropriate staff receive training 
in the application of money laundering legislation. 

3 Objectives of Internal Audit 

3.1 As an independent appraisal function within the authority, the primary objective of 
Internal Audit is to review, appraise and report upon the adequacy of internal 
controls as a contribution to the proper, economic, efficient and effective use of 
resources. In addition, the other objectives of the function are to: 

• support the Strategic Director of Resources to discharge his duties as the Section 
151 Officer 

• contribute to and support the authority’s objective of ensuring the provision of, 
and promoting the need for, sound financial and internal control systems. It 
objectively examines, evaluates and reports on the adequacy of the control 
environment (comprising risk management, control and governance) as a 
contribution to the proper, economic, efficient and effective use of resources. 

4 Code of Practice for Internal Audit – CIPFA, 2006 

4.1 A Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government was approved by CIPFA in 

2006. The internal audit functions in all Principal Local Authorities must comply with 

this code.  Some aspects of this code are discussed below. 

4.2 Standard 1 relates to the Scope of Internal Audit.  The Terms of Reference are 

stated in Financial Procedure Rules to reflect the emphasis on review of the control 

environment and the results of the council’s risk management process by Internal 

Audit and clarification of management responsibilities for Fraud and Corruption. The 

Standard also emphasises that the Terms of Reference for IA should be regularly 

reviewed by the organisation. 

Page 24



4.3 Standard 2 concerns Independence. One of the requirements is that “the position of 

the Head of Internal Audit in the management structure should reflect the influence 

he or she has on the control environment and he or she should not report or be 

managed at a lower organisational level than the corporate management team”. This 

requirement is met as the Strategic Director of Resources is the line manager for the 

Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management (HOIARM). The Standard emphasises 

that the support of the organisation is essential and recognition of the independence 

of internal audit is fundamental to its effectiveness. It clearly states that Internal Audit 

should not have any operational responsibilities. 

4.4 Standard 3 places emphasis on ethics and the principles that must be observed by 
all internal auditors in carrying out their tasks — integrity, objectivity, competence, 
and confidentiality. Each auditor is required to act in an ethical manner and all 
auditors are required to sign a register of interests. 

4.5 Standard 4 relates to Audit Committees and outlines the purposes of the Audit 
Committee and the relationship between the Committee and the IA function. Slough 
BC formed an Audit Committee in June 2008 after changing the constitution of the 
Council to accommodate the formation of the Audit Committee. The Terms of 
Reference are reviewed annually. 

4.6 Standard 5 relates to relationships with management, members, other auditors and 
review bodies. This is in accordance with our existing methodology. The HoIARM 
maintains and builds relationships with various parties relevant to Slough BC and 
Internal Audit. 

4.7 Standard 6 relates to Staffing, Training and Continuing Professional Development. It 
emphasises the appropriate staffing of Internal Audit by numbers and competence, 
and responsibility to undertake CPD. This is currently being developed further by the 
HoIARM and a partnership arrangement is in place to ensure adequate IT audit skills 
are available. 

4.8 Standard 7 relates to Audit Strategy and Planning. This is a high level statement of 
how the Internal Audit service will be delivered and developed. — e.g. a mix of in-
house and external staff, and the risk based development of audit plans, and how it 
links to the organisational objectives and priorities.  It also states that the plan should 
differentiate between assurance and other work. Where there is perceived to be an 
imbalance between the planned work and the resource availability, the HOIARM 
should inform the Audit Panel along with proposed solutions. 

4.9 Standard 8 refers to Management of Audit Assignments. All audit work is risk based, 
subjected to a review process and utilises standard documentation. Time retention 
periods for different types of audit documents have been discussed and an archive 
policy is in place. 

4.10 Standard 9 concerns Due Professional Care. The HoIARM ensures that all internal 
audit staff regularly complete a declaration of interest and conflict of interest 
statement. Continuing professional development is also undertaken through formal 
courses or on the job training. 

4.11 Standard 10 deals with Reporting. The standard prescribes principles to be observed 
in effective report writing, procedures for reporting and follow-ups; it also states the 
requirement for the HoIARM to provide the annual report on the control environment. 
Our current practices meet this standard, including the highlighting of residual risks 
where recommendations are not agreed. There is also a requirement for the 
HoIARM to make arrangements for interim reporting to the organisation in the course 

Page 25



of the year to address any emerging issues in respect of areas to be covered in the 
annual report. This is covered as part of the quarterly reporting process to the Audit 
Committee and also during regular one to one meetings with the Strategic Director of 
Resources. 

4.12 Standard 11 deals with Performance, Quality and Effectiveness. It emphasises the 
keeping of an audit manual and reviewing work of staff. There is also a requirement 
for the Head of Internal Audit to have in place a performance management and 
quality assessment framework to demonstrate the effectiveness of Internal Audit. A 
review of Internal Audit was carried out by the Audit Commission in 2007. A number 
of recommendations were made and all of these have been implemented. In addition 
the Head of Internal Audit carries out a self assessment using the guidance provided 
in the Code of Internal Audit code of practice. A peer review arrangement has been 
agreed with a neighbouring London Borough to assess the effectiveness of Internal 
Audit. The results of this review will be reported in the annual audit report. The audit 
manual is maintained and kept updated by the HoIARM to reflect any changes in 
working practices. These changes are designed to focus scarce audit resources on 
high risk areas and enabled auditors to carry out efficient and relevant audit testing. 

5 Location of Internal Audit 

5.1 Internal Audit is located within the Resources Directorate under the direction of the 
Strategic Director of Resources.  

6 Internal Control 

6.1 Management has the responsibility to establish internal control so that its activities 
are conducted in an efficient and well-ordered manner.  Internal control comprises 
the whole system of controls and methods, both financial and otherwise, which are 
established by management to 

• safeguard its assets 

• ensure reliability of records 

• promote operational efficiency 

• monitor adherence to policies and directives 

6.2 The Turnbull Guidance, as incorporated into the Combined Code on Corporate 
Governance, states, concerning internal control: “an internal control system 
encompasses the policies, processes, tasks, behaviours, and other aspects of a 
company that, taken together: 

• Facilitate its effective and efficient operation by enabling it to respond 
appropriately to significant business, operational, financial compliance and other 
risks to achieving the company’s objectives. This includes the safeguarding of 
assets from inappropriate use or from loss and fraud and ensuring that liabilities 
are identified and managed; 

• Help ensure the quality of internal and external reporting. This requires the 
maintenance of proper records and processes that generate a flow of timely, 
relevant and reliable information from within and outside the organisation; 

• Help ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and also with 
internal policies with respect to the conduct of business. 

6.3 An organisations system of internal control will reflect its control environment, which 
encompasses its organisational structure. The system will include 

Page 26



• Control activities 

• Information and communications processes 

• Processes for monitoring the continuing effectiveness of the system of internal 
control. 

6.4 Management at all levels is primarily responsible for effective control systems 
including probity, financial and operational aspects.  The role of the Internal Auditor 
is to provide expert advice and consultation – auditors are not themselves 
controllers. 

6.5 It follows that Internal Audit can best serve management by working in partnership 
with each ‘control centre auditee’ when activities are reviewed.  The approach will be 
supportive, but from an independent and objective perspective, and will not be 
compromised.  The motive, or focus, for Internal Audit is not to find mistakes, but to 
solve problems in order to provide future benefits and achieve corporate goals, 
efficiently, economically and effectively.  This also applies to fraud and corruption. 

7 Audit Reporting 

7.1 All audit assignments will be the subject of formal reports. Draft reports will be 

discussed with the managers responsible for the area under review for agreement to 

the factual accuracy of findings. After agreement, the reports will be issued in 

accordance with procedures agreed with each department. 

7.2 Progress on audits is monitored weekly and monthly by the HoIARM using 

management information developed in house. The performance indicators examined 

are 

• percentage of planned work completed in period 

• percentage of recommendations accepted 

• percentage of recommendations implemented after agreed period 

• results of client satisfaction survey 

8 Relationship with External Audit 

8.1 Internal and External Audit meet formally and otherwise regularly to co-ordinate their 
plans and maximise the use of audit resources.  A formal Internal Audit/ External 
Audit protocol is being actively pursued by Internal Audit. 

8.2 External Audit review the work of Internal Audit every year to assess the degree of 
reliance it can place on their work. 

8.3 The External Auditor has a statutory responsibility to express an independent opinion 
on the financial statements and stewardship of the authority. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 27



9 Related Documents 

9.1 This document is one of a series that, together, constitute the policies of the authority 
in relation to anti-fraud and corruption. The other documents are 

• Anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy 

• Whistle-blowing policy 

• Employment Handbook 

• Code of Conduct for employees 

• CIPFA: Code Of Practice for Internal Audit in the United Kingdom 2006 

• Anti Money Laundering Policy 

Page 28



Preparation of the Plan Appendix 3 

1 Introduction 

 The steps in the preparation of the audit plan are as follows: 

1.1 The starting point is to determine the total days available for audit. 

1.2 From these gross productive days, time for audit planning, management and 
training etc.  are deducted to arrive at total chargeable days.   

1.3 From the total chargeable days, time required for other finance (non-audit) 
work, e.g. Risk Management, Insurance, administration, is then deducted to 
leave total chargeable audit days. 

1.4 The chargeable audit days are sub-divided into planned and contingency 
audits.  Contingency audits are calculated as approximately 15% of planned 
audits.  

1.5 Planned audits are further divided as shown below. 

2 Planned audits 

 Planned audits are divided into Central Financial Systems, Governance work and 
other audits.  

2.1 Central Financial Systems and Governance cover those areas which need to be 
audited (generally) annually so that the Director of Resources can discharge his 
responsibilities under section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, and the 
Authority’s statutory responsibilities (for Internal Audit) under the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations.  They include audits of areas such as Corporate Governance, Risk 
Management, Treasury, Income, Payroll etc.  

2.2 Audit time for systems are initially determined by applying risk prioritisation (to a 
calculation of ideal audit days) as below. However subsequently, judgement is used, 
along with observations from the Strategic Director of Resources and the External 
Auditor (District Audit) to arrive at actual final days for each audit.  

2.3 The ideal audit days are determined by using a notional ideal days figure based on 
judgement by the Head of Audit. 

2.4 The ideal days calculated above are weighted by use of risk indexing.  This produces 
an absolute level of ideal audit days which would be available in an ideal world. The 
HoIARM will use the proportions in the Ideal days to apportion audit days to each 
audit area in order to come in line with existing resources of 4,221 audit days over a 
three year period. 

Page 29



2.5 Four categories are used in the risk assessment process 

• Corporate Importance — this aspect considers the effect on the council of any 
inability to achieve management defined service objectives should the system or 
process fail. This aspect also takes into account the financial exposure or 
materiality of the area. The consequential impact, either directly or indirectly, on 
other systems and processes is also relevant to the process. Overall it is a 
measure of the extent to which the council depends on the correct running of the 
system to achieve its strategic objectives 

• Corporate Sensitivity — this aspect takes into account the 
sensitivity/confidentiality of the information processed, or service delivered by the 
system, or decisions influenced by the output. It also assesses any legal and 
regulatory compliance requirements. The measure should also reflect any 
management concerns and sensitivities 

• Inherent Risk — this aspect considers the inherent risk of the system, service, 
process or related assets to error, loss, irregularity, inefficiency, illegality or failure. 
The particular service sector, nature of operations and the pace of change will 
also affect the level of inherent risk. Similarly the relative complexity of the system 
will influence the inherent risk of error. The inherent vulnerability of a system, 
service or process cannot be altered, only mitigated by the quality of controls 
considered under ‘control’ risk below 

• Control Risk — this aspect assesses the level of control risk based upon the 
results of past audits of the control environment under review. This aspect also 
takes account of the operating history and condition of systems and processes 
and knowledge of management controls to minimise exposure to risk 

2.6 Total audit risk for each audit area is then determined, and these risk weightings are 
used in the initial allocation of resources.    

2.7 The days thus determined are then considered and if necessary, revised to allow for 
the auditor’s judgement and the views of Strategic Directors, the Strategic Director of 
Resources and External Auditor’s views. 

3 Audit recharge to departments 

3.1 Audit costs are recharged on the basis of the three -year average chargeable days 
planned for each department. 

3.2 The cost per day is calculated by dividing the cost of the Audit Section by the total of 
planned audit days, contingency days, and days for other finance work. 

3.3 The cost to People 1
st
 is based on the planned audit days for each year together with 

an allocation for contingency. 

Page 30



  

 

Contact: Sudhi Pathak 

Tel:  01753 875374  

E-Mail: Sudhi Pathak@slough.gov.uk 

 

Audit Committee   

 

WORK OF INTERNAL AUDIT – THIRD QUARTER 2009/10 

Report by: Head of Audit and Risk Management 

Summary 
 

The Head of Audit and Risk Management produces a quarterly summary of the work of 
Internal Audit. 

This summary consists of a narrative in which the Head of Audit and Risk Management 
updates the Audit Committee on any changes in the audit plan and also highlights other areas 
that he feels the Audit Committee should be aware of. 

In addition to the narrative key matters are attached in the following statements: 

 

Statement 1: Comparison of allocation and use of resources to  31December 2009 

Statement 2: Performance Indicators for quarter ending  31December 2009 

Statement 3: Summary of Audit Reports Issued in Quarter 3 2009/10 

Statement 4: Audit Reports experiencing delay in implementation 

Statement 5:   Position on contingency audits/irregularity reviews up to 31December 2009 

Statement 6: Irregularities finalised in 2009/10 

Statement 7: Risk Management Update 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 4

Page 31



  

 

1 Head of Audit and Risk Management Update    
1.1 The audit plan continues to be risk based and as part of this process the Head of 

Audit meets with Directors and 2nd tier officers and discusses the following areas 
to inform the Audit Plan: 

• Key risks 

• Risk Management and Risk Registers 

1.2 The Head of Audit continues to monitor the risks in the organisation and update 
the Audit Plan to reflect changing priorities. Any changes in the plan are reported 
to the Audit Committee. 

1.3 Part of this process is the continuing identification of risk areas by ongoing 
consultation with relevant staff across the organisation and inclusion of high risk 
areas in the audit plan. 

1.4 The 2009/10 Audit Plan was agreed in March 2009 and had 1209 auditable days 
allocated across the organisation. Between quarter one and quarter three 72  
audit days have been added and 97 days have been deleted. The plan currently 
has 1184 auditable days. The list of added and deleted items is provided in the 
table below. 

Audits added and deleted in 2009/10 

Audit Description Audit 
Days 

Status Comments 

IT Business 
Continuity 

7 added Audit added as this area is now ready 
to be audited 

Members Allowances 2 added Days added to initial 5 day allocation 
to allow work to be completed 

Planning Policy 
&Projects 

2 added As above 

Cippenham Library 6 added Replace combined Libraries Audit 

Langley Library 6 added As above 

Youth Service 10 added Replacement to deleted Music Service 
Audit 

FMSiS 10 added Management of the Financial 
Management Standard in Schools 
assessment process 

Business Continuity 
& Disaster Recovery 

9 added To replace school catering own 
provision 

Page 32



  

 

Audits added and deleted in 2009/10 

Audit Description Audit 
Days 

Status Comments 

Slough & Eton 
School 

10 added To replace Priory School 

Lavender Court  5 added To replace food & safety 

Respond 5 added To replace food & safety 

Cippenham & 
Langley Libraries 

10 deleted Need to be audited as separate 
entities 

Cippenham Library 6 deleted Libraries to be assessed by AD 

Music Service 10 deleted Satisfactory assurance in 2008/09 
replaced by Youth Service 

West Wing 10 deleted Future of West Wing currently under 
review  

SMT Priorities 10 deleted 10 days allocated to FMSiS 
management 

Britwell Library 10 deleted Libraries to be assessed by AD 

Food & Safety 10 deleted Low priority area replaced by high 
priority Respond & Lavender Court 

Programmes & 
Procurement 

15 deleted Included in Procurement Audit 

School Catering Own 
Provision 

10 deleted Replaced by higher priority Business 
Continuity and Disaster Recovery 

Priory School 6 deleted Replaced by Slough and Eton 

    

Net change 25 deleted  

 

Page 33



  

 

Counter Fraud arrangements 

1.5 Internal Audit has taken a number of steps to ensure that counter fraud 
arrangements in Slough Borough Council are effective. These include both 
proactive and reactive anti fraud arrangements. 

Policy Updates 

1.6 The anti fraud and corruption policy was updated in March 2009 and was 
approved by CMT on 01/04/09. The fraud response plan was also approved by 
CMT on 01/04/09. These documents outline the roles and responsibilities of 
officers and members and the actions they should take in the event of a fraud 
occurring. 

Training 

1.7 In July 2009 SBC purchased an electronic antifraud training package to further 
raise antifraud awareness amongst staff. The training package is web based and 
highlights 

Ø staff and management responsibilities in respect of fraud 
Ø how to combat fraud and create an anti fraud culture 
Ø how to detect potential fraud and 
Ø what actions to take if fraud is detected. 

1.8 The training package tutorial takes approximately 30 to 40 minutes to complete 
and is followed by a test of knowledge. A log is kept of those employees who 
have completed the test. 

1.9 The original target was to roll out the training in Quarter 2, however, due to 
capacity within the internal audit section this will now be rolled out in quarter 4.  

Anti Fraud Plan 

1.10 The audit work carried out by Internal Audit and the work carried out by the 
Housing Benefit Fraud Unit contribute to the anti fraud arrangements in the 
organisation. These activities have been identified and brought together in one 
document to enable further clarity in respect of anti fraud work being carried out. 
This was presented formally to the previous audit committee. It is proposed that 
progress against the plan will be measured in the quarter 4 report and quarterly 
thereafter. 

1.11 An updated anti fraud plan will be presented to Audit Committee in quarter 4. 

 

Page 34



  

 

STATEMENT 1 

Comparison of allocation and use of resources–to 31December 
2009 

 ANNUAL AUDIT 

PLAN ALLOCATION - 

ORIGINAL 

ANNUAL AUDIT 

PLAN ALLOCATION - 

LATEST  

ACTUAL USED 

TO END OF 

QUARTER 2 

   Days % 

PLANNED AUDITS   

Fundamental (Core) Systems Audits 392 401 34

Non-Core Systems Audits 743 658 403

IT Audit 74 90 43

TOTAL PLANNED AUDITS: 1209 1149 480

   

OTHER AUDIT WORK   

Old Year Audits 10 10 11

Follow Ups 40 40 71

Contingency Audits 42 42 122

Investigations 40 65 61

TOTAL OTHER AUDIT WORK 132 157 265

   

TOTAL AUDIT DAYS   

   

OTHER CHARGEABLE   

Chargeable Management 324 324 101

TOTAL CHARGEABLE DAYS 324 324 101

   

AUDIT MANAGEMENT & ADMIN   

Non Chargeable Management 76 76 18

Management Information/Admin 121 121 77

TOTAL MANAGEMENT & ADMIN 197 197 95

   

LEAVE & TRAINING   

Statutory Leave 
 

80 80 40

Annual Leave 309 309 161

Special Leave 145 145 67

Sick Absence 80 80 187

Professional Training 124 124 7

TOTAL LEAVE & TRAINING 738 738 462

TOTAL STAFF DAYS 2600 2600 

 

Vacancies are used to fund work from Deloitte & Touche. 

These days will be applied and reported when draft reports are issued.  

Page 35



  

 

STATEMENT 2 

Performance Indicators for quarter ending 31December 2009 

 Planned work 
 
 Current 
 Quarter Year to 31.12.09 

  %        % 
  
Proportion of planned audit work completed 18                      35 

Anticipated 60% completion by end of February 2010 

 Recommendations 

 Recommendations: Made Agreed  Proportion agreed 

         Current years audits 

                                   Quarter               70           70                      100% 

                                        Year                    97           97                      100% 

Follow-up responses received« 

 Recommendations 

 Agreed Implemented  Proportion implemented 

 Quarter 24 22                         92% 

    

« NB: statistics of recommendations implemented are based on a six month follow up 

review after the issue of a final report. Also note that some recommendations may not 
have been due for implementation within 6 months of the issue of the final report. 

 Survey results received 

 Quarter Year to 31.12.09 

 Proportion   Proportion 

 Good                               78                                        70 

 Satisfactory                     22                                        30 

 Poor                                          

 Unsatisfactory                                             

 

  

Page 36



  

 

STATEMENT 3 

Summary of Audit Reports Issued in Quarter 3 2009/10 

3.1 The following Audits received a Satisfactory Assurance 

Ø Building Control 
Ø Lea Nursery School 
Ø Supporting People Grant Certification 
Ø Occupational Health 
Ø Cippenham Junior School 
Ø St Bernards Catholic Grammar School 
Ø Haybrook College 
Ø Education Welfare 
Ø Contact Point 
Ø Pippins School 
Ø Anti-Virus & Spyware 
Ø Data Centre 
Ø Single Status Harmonisation & Job Evaluation 
Ø Disabled Facilities grant 

 

3.2 The following audits received Limited Assurance 

DPA & FOI 

We made thirteen significant risk and two medium risk recommendations to 
improve the administration and management overview the Data Protection Act 
and Freedom of Information. 

An action plan is in place and progress will be reported to a future audit 
committee. 

Overtime Payments 

We made six recommendations to improve the administration and 
management of the overtime cots and processes. 

An action plan is in place and progress will be reported to a future audit 
committee. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 37



  

 

3.3 The Following Audits received No Assurance 

Slough & Eton School 

We made 24 significant risk recommendations and nine medium risk 
recommendations to improve the financial management of the school. 

An action plan is in place and progress will be reported to a future audit 
committee. 

3.4 Recommendations not implemented 
 
In the third quarter of 2009/10 seven of the twenty-six medium and significant 
risk recommendations followed up were not implemented. These are outlined 
below: 

 
Lettings Management 
 
Two medium risk recommendations not implemented 
 

Ø The Assessment Manager should record the 10% checks that are 
carried out in respect of applications to join the Housing Register and 
the correct allocation on the register 

 
Ø Copies of declarations are to be returned to the departments director 

for inclusion in the departmental register of employees interests. 
 
Mobile Phones 
 
This audit was reported in December 2008 and made seven high and medium 
risk recommendations. 
 
A follow up audit was completed in June 2009 and a further follow up in 
October 2009. 
 
Five medium risk recommendations have not been implemented; all of these 
relate to the out of date mobile phones policy and to user terms and 
conditions.  

As a result of non implementation of recommendations there remains a high 
risk of mobile phone abuse 
 
 
3.5 As agreed by members, where recommendations or actions have not 

implemented recommendations the responsible officers may be given 
an opportunity to explain why at the following audit committee. 

 
 

Page 38



  

 

STATEMENT 4 

Audit Reports experiencing delay in implementation 

4.1 Outstanding Follow ups 

Audit no and title          Department name Final 
report 
issued 

Follow-up Due 

    

 
Note: Follow up of recommendations is carried out with every audit and/or 
after 6 months. 

 

4.2 Outstanding drafts  

Audit title Department name Draft sent Contact name 

    

There are no draft reports for which we are awaiting a response 

 

Page 39



  

 

 

 STATEMENT 5 

Position on contingency audits/irregularity reviews up 
to 31December 2009 
 

5.1 Contingency Audits  

Description Total 

Days to 
31/12/09 

Current position 

 Housing Management Information 
system 

8 On-going with significant issues 

 

5.2 Irregularity reviews 

Description Total 

Days to 
31/12/09 

Current position 

 Overpayment to Care leaver 1.0 Initial report and recommendations issued. Awaiting a 
response to finalise the report 

 Allegation of Personal business 
being managed from SBC 
premises 

2.0 Management investigation currently underway 
following Internal Audit advice 

 Supported Living Investigation 50 Audit investigation complete. Police investigation 
complete. 

Page 40



  

 

STATEMENT 6 

Irregularities finalised in 2009/10 
 

E-mail abuse complaint in CWB directorate 

6.1 An offensive email was sent by an employee of Slough Borough Council 
to another employee of Slough Borough Council. After investigation it 
was found that the email originated from a personal e-mail account 
rather than a work account. 

6.2 The officer concerned was reminded of the email policy and no further 
action was taken 

  

Query on payment card usage 

6.3 A number of payments made using a payment card issued to the 
Creative Academy Co-ordinator in the Community & Wellbeing 
Directorate were identified as potentially personal rather than business. 

6.4 An investigation showed that all the payments identified were made for 
business and that a management trail existed for each one. 

6.5 It was further established that where appropriate, the suppliers had been 
invited to apply for inclusion on I-Proc so that the card would not need to 
be used in future for similar purchases.  

Financial Irregularities at Longcroft residential home 

6.6 On 1st December 2008 an irregularity in the funds held at Phoenix Day 
Centre was identified by the Assistant Unit Manager and reported to the 
Group/Locality Manager and Director of Community and Wellbeing.  

6.7 A full disciplinary investigation and Internal Audit investigation was 
undertaken and the administrative officer was dismissed with immediate 
effect. The findings of the investigation were reported to Thames Valley 
Police, who on the 25th March arrested the administrative officer and 
pressed charges. 

6.8 The administrative officer received a police caution 

Supported Living 

6.9 Supported Living is about people with disability 

Ø Living in their own home  
Ø Making choices about their life 
Ø Getting support to live the way they want to 

 

Page 41



  

 

6.10 In August 2009 Internal audit carried out an investigation in respect of 
suspected financial irregularities and shared their findings with the 
Police. 

6.11 One member of staff was dismissed and in January 2010 received a 
suspended custodial sentence and 100 hours of community service. The 
financial crime unit are also applying for an asset seizure order from the 
Crown Court. 

Page 42



  

 

STATEMENT 7 

7 Risk Management Update 

7.1 This update report focuses on 

Ø the framework in place for updating Senior Management on Risk 
Management developments and issues 

Ø the key actions taken in the quarter  October 2009 to December 
2009 

Ø the proposed actions for the quarter January 2010 to March 
2009 

Ø the actions taken to mitigate the risks identified within the 
Corporate Risk Register 

Ø relevant insurance actions  

Reporting Risk Management issues to senior management 

7.2 CMT are receiving formal reports providing quarterly updates on Risk 
Management issues. These include 

Ø Actions taken to mitigate identified risks 
Ø Movements of risks between the red, amber and green status 
Ø New and emerging risks 
Ø Updates on areas where risks have not been addressed in order 

that CMT can take informed decisions on allocation of resources 

7.3 Internal Audit and Risk Management regularly attend SMTs to discuss 
and update Risk Registers and also provide training as and when 
required. The Risk Management profile is currently high and SMTs are 
inviting Internal Audit and Risk Management to attend SMTs in order to 
keep Risk Registers updated and relevant. 

7.4 This is a positive situation as it demonstrates ownership of Risks by 
Directorates and that Risk Management continues to be further 
embedded across the organisation. 

7.5 Updated Risk Management Guidance has been published on the 
intranet along with the corporate risk register and all individual 
directorate risk registers. 

7.6 Risk Registers are being developed for the Council’s key strategic 
projects, such as Heart of Slough and Shared Services. 

 

 

Page 43



  

 

 

Key actions taken for the quarter October 2009 to December 2009 

7.7 The Risks Registers for Community and Well-Being and for Education 
and Children’s Services were up-dated by the respective Senior 
Management teams. 

7.8 The Directors of Resources and Improvement & Development were 
both shown how to enter and update risks on the council’s risk 
management system, this will enable departments to take further 
ownership of their risks and the responsibility for their management.  

7.9 Three officers within the Improvement & Development Department 
were trained on the Risk Management to establish whether the JCAD 
Risk system would be able to be tailored to monitor performance 
management. 

 
Key actions proposed for the quarter January 2010 to March 2010 
 

7.10 The remainder of the Departmental Risk Registers are to be updated. 

7.11 It is proposed to complete the programme of roll out to Directors and 
Assistant directors. 

7.12 In order that departments may update their own risk registers without 
recourse to the Risk and Insurance Officer a member of each 
department will be trained to enter, update and report on risks. This 
officer will take on the roll of Risk Champion. 

7.13 It is envisaged that the introduction of more localised control over risk 
registers will encourage the completion and use of risk registers 
throughout the organisation on a regular basis. 

Relevant Insurance Actions 

7.14 Work was carried out in preparing the insurance portfolio tender in 
conjunction with the Council’s Insurance brokers. 

7.15 The insurance cover for SBC is currently in the tender evaluation stage. 

7.16 A report will be produced for CMT and members in February 2010 that 
recommends the make up of the Council’s insurance portfolio, this 
report will include budget implications for 2010/11. 

Page 44



  

 

2009/10 Annual Governance Statement 

1.1 From 2007/08, Local Authorities are required to produce an Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS). 

1.2 The AGS states whether the Governance arrangements in the 
organisation are effective and that any of areas of concern have been 
identified. An action plan should be put in place to address the areas of 
concern identified. 

1.3 The most senior officer and the most senior member have joint 
responsibility as signatories for its accuracy and completeness.  

1.4 The 2008/09 AGS was signed by the Leader of the Council and the 
Chief Executive in June 2009. 

1.5 The 2008/09 AGS identified six areas of concern as  follows; 

a) Project Management 
b) Partnerships and governance arrangements 
c) Harmonisation/ Staffing Issues 
d) Community Cohesion 
e) Business Continuity 
f) Impact of world Economic climate 

1.6  Actions have been identified to address these areas of concern and the 
2008/09 Annual Governance Statement is attached. 

1.7 Risk management features strongly in the AGS process. It supports the 
coordinating role of the corporate group by advising on risks to achieving 
corporate objectives and statutory requirements, which are set out in 
corporate, directorate and departmental risk registers, and how they are 
managed. 

1.8 In line with previous years an overview of the AGS methodology is 
provided for members 

Ø Appendix 1 - One page overview 

Ø Appendix 2 – Diagramatic representation of the AGS methodology 

Ø Appendix 3 – Timetable for AGS methodology 

Ø Appendix 4 – Directors Assurance Statement 

Ø Appendix 5 – 2008/09 Annual Governance Statement approved at full 
Council  

AGENDA ITEM 5

Page 45



  

 

APPENDIX 1 

THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

AN OVERVIEW 

1. From 2007/08, Local Authorities need to produce an Annual Governance 
Statement (AGS).  This replaces the Statement on Internal Control (SIC). 

2. The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) is a key corporate document. 
The most senior officer and the most senior member have joint 
responsibility as signatories for its accuracy and completeness. 

3. The AGS should be approved at a meeting of the authority or delegated 
committee. 

4. As a corporate document the AGS should be owned by all senior officers 
and members of the authority.   

5. The signatories need to ensure that the AGS accurately reflects the 
governance framework for which they are responsible. In order to 
achieve this they are likely to rely on many sources of assurance, such 
as: 

• directors and managers; 

• the responsible financial officer; 

• the monitoring officer; 

• members; 

• the Head of Internal Audit;  

• performance and risk management 

• third-parties, e.g. partnerships; 

• external audit and other review agencies. 

6. The statement should be continuously reviewed throughout the year, 
however, in practice, authorities with well-developed arrangements will 
find that it will emerge from the routine governance and managerial 
processes (which necessarily operate continuously).  

7. Risk management should feature strongly in the AGS process. It should 
support the co-ordinating role of the corporate group by advising on risks 
to achieving corporate objectives and statutory requirements, which are 
set out in corporate, directorate and departmental risk registers, and how 
they are managed. 

8. The Head of Internal Audit should provide a written annual report to 
those charged with governance timed to support the Annual Governance 
Statement. The review of the effectiveness of the system of internal audit 
helps to ensure that the opinion in the annual report of the Head of 
Internal Audit may be relied upon as a key source of evidence in the 
AGS.  

Page 46



 

 

APPENDIX 2 

Authority & 

Directorate Policies, 

Business Plans and 

Risk Registers

Annual Governance

Statement

Framework - Key documents/process guidelines 
• Performance management

• Business strategy and planning process

• Budget and budgetary control

• Code of corporate governance

• Project management/  Risk Management / counter Fraud 

Policy

• Ethical Governance

• Policies, procedures, codes of conduct

• Partnership protocol Approval by Committee or by 

members of body meeting as a whole

AGS Working group is 

responsible for 

drafting AGS evaluate 

assurances and 

supporting evidence

• Annual Plan

• Management 

letter

• Audit Opinion

• Use of 

Resources

• Ad hoc Projects

• Departmental 

governance

External Audit 

• Embedded 

system

• Operates 

throughout 

organisation

• Internal & 

external reviews

• Action orientated

• National/local 

KPIs

• Periodic progress 

reports

• S151 assurance

• Treasury 

Management 

• Group Accounts 

report

• Annual 

management 

assurances

• Periodic reports

• Cascaded 

through all 

employees

• Control & risk 

self-assessment 

questionnaires

• Risk Management 

Group reports

• Embedded in policies 

& planning

• Effectiveness 

evaluated

• Annual questionnaire

• Diagnostic survey

• Cascaded through all 

employees

• Results analysed by 

RMG and/or IA

Risk 

Management

Assurances by 

managers

Financial 

assurance

Other sources 

of assurance

Performance 

Management

• Monitoring Officer’s 

report

• Fraud reports and 

investigations

• Reports by Inspectors

• Best Value reports

• Post Implementation 

reviews of projects

• Working Party reports

• Efficiency statements

Internal Audit

• Charter and Strategy

• Approved risk-based 

plans

• Periodic & annual 

reports to audit 

committee, including 

Head of Internal 

Audit’s opinion

Review of the 

effectiveness 

of the system 

of Internal 

Audit 

• CIPFA Code 

compliance 

assessment

• Client  and 

Management opinion

• External audit opinion

• Effectiveness of Audit 

Committee

Provide assurance on adequacy and

effectiveness of controls over key risks

 
 

P
a
g
e
 4

7



 

 

 

APPENDIX 3 

Timetable for Annual Governance Statement 2009/10 

Date Action Responsibility Notes 

11/01/2010 Initial meeting to discuss AGS methodology JE/AN/SQ/SP Update methodology and agree Terms of Reference 

January First meeting of AGS working group Head Of Audit Strategic Director of Resources, Deputy Director of 
Finance, Monitoring Officer and Head of Audit 

January  Circulate self-certification checklists to managers Head Of Audit Managers can ask for clarification of requirements for 
the AGS process 

February Managers begin to assemble and index evidence 
to support their declarations to directors 

All Senior Managers Managers have been provided with examples of the 
evidence required to support their declarations 

Late March Managers complete self-certification forms, raise 
issues with directors and formulate action plans 

All Senior Managers Managers must ensure that their most serious 
concerns are fully shared with their directors 

April Directors complete assurance statements All Directors Returns submitted to Monitoring Officer 

April Assemble other evidence of control from various 
sources 

AGS Working Group The Group as a whole must take responsibility for 
bringing it together 

May Prepare framework AGS: sketch in likely issues 
and feed back to directors 

AGS Working Group This will help ensure that directors’ declarations are 
complete and evidenced 

May Annual Head of Audit opinion Head Of Audit Based on audit work and discussions with officers 

May Corporate Management Team review AGS, and 
take full ownership for it 

CMT There must be a strong sense of corporate ownership 

May Officers and nominated members meet to 
discuss draft AGS 

Strategic Director of 
Resources 

Officer and member meeting prior to AGS presentation 
at Audit Committee 

May Submit draft AGS to Audit Commission for 
discussion alongside accounts 

Strategic Director of 
Resources 

 

17/06/2010 Draft AGS to Audit Committee Head Of Audit For Audit Committee to discuss and comment 

June 2010 Sign AGS Chief Exec  and Lead 
Member 

Challenge and sign off by Chief Exec and Lead 
Member  

29 June Approval at Cabinet and Full Council   There must be a strong sense of corporate ownership 

P
a
g
e
 4

8



 

 

APPENDIX 4 

The Annual Governance Statement  

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2006 require the Council to include an Annual 
Governance Statement, (AGS), on the systems on internal control with the final 
accounts.  

The statement is a public assurance that the Council has sound systems of internal 
control, which help manage and control business risk. It is an important public 
expression of what the Council has done to ensure good business practice, high 
standards of conduct and sound governance. 

Each director must complete, certify and return a statement of their directorate’s 
current position, using the model format below. 

Directors should utilise subsidiary statements from their direct reports. 

Any system of internal control can provide only reasonable and not absolute 
assurance that assets are safeguarded, that transactions are authorised and properly 
recorded, and that material errors or irregularities are either prevented or will be 
detected in a timely way. 

Therefore, please complete the statement ‘to the best of your knowledge’ – it’s 
particularly important that you bring out the matters that are currently causing you 
concern. 

Assistant Directors should send a hard copy of their signed statements to their 
Director. 

Directors should send a hard copy of their signed statement to the Borough 
Secretary and Solicitor by the end of April 2010. 

We suggest that you also keep a copy of your statement, cross-referenced to the 
sources of evidence you are relying on. 

It is likely that external audit will want to trace your assurance back to the source 
data. 

If you have any queries, please contact Steven Quayle (ext. 5004). 

Page 49



 

 

Annual Governance Statement 2009-10 

1 Corporate responsibilities  

This statement relates to the Council’s 2009-10 financial year. 

I acknowledge my responsibility in maintaining and operating the Service in accordance with the Council’s procedures and practices 
that uphold the internal control and assurance framework.  

The information I have provided in this section is given to the best of my knowledge in connection with the service areas I am 
responsible for. Where I cannot give full assurance of control, I have given details in the “Summary of Evidence” column. 

Ref. Area of responsibility Confirmed 
(yes/no) 

Summary of evidence, and 
planned corrective action, if 

required 

1.1 I confirm that: 

§ key system controls operate to safeguard Council assets from error or 
irregularity (Does your departments key systems help ensure that the 
Council’s assets such as buildings, money, and vehicles are secure and are 
protected from theft, damage or subject to fraudulent misuse?) 

§ I keep the key controls under review, and where any weaknesses are I take 
action to remedy the issues and inform appropriate officers where required.  

  

1.2 I confirm that: 

§ I deploy all the resources at my disposal to achieve Council business 
objectives 

§ I review the use of resources. 

§ I take action to address ineffective, inefficient and uneconomic use where I 
find them 

 

  

P
a
g
e
 5

0



 

 

Ref. Area of responsibility Confirmed 
(yes/no) 

Summary of evidence, and 
planned corrective action, if 

required 

1.3 My service plan contributes to the Council’s wider business priorities and reflects 
existing policies and strategies. This is demonstrated by: 

§ key performance indicators 

§ budget-setting and resource allocation 

§ identifiable improvements in service, including achievement of explicit 
outputs and milestones 

§ action plans to support achievement of objectives; further improvements in 
service delivery; and to overcome service delivery and performance failures. 

  

1.4 Business risk management: 

§ I seek to identify, assess and keep under review business risks 

§ I take action to manage business risks 

§ I have a risk register to assist with the above in connection with the services 
and activities that I am responsible for. 

  

1.5 I ensure that both my staff and I have access to, and are familiar with and work 
in accordance with the following guidance, and that I take action where I identify 
non-compliance: 

§ financial regulations and delegation arrangements 

§ contract procedure rules 

§ officer code of conduct 

§ protocols on member/officer relations 

§ policies on fraud, corruption and whistle blowing. 

  

P
a
g
e
 5

1



 

 

Ref. Area of responsibility Confirmed 
(yes/no) 

Summary of evidence, and 
planned corrective action, if 

required 

1.6 I ensure that my decisions and service activity have due regard for: 

§ the Council’s business objectives 

§ business risk 

§ best value and service improvement 

§ financial consequences 

§ staffing implications 

§ sustainable development  

§ legality 

§ equality and diversity and community safety  

§ health improvement  

§ property implications 

§ business continuity 

§ crime and disorder (section 17) concerns. 

  

 

P
a
g
e
 5

2



 

 

2 Accounts - financial and legal implications 

This statement relates to the Council’s 2009-10 financial year. 

I acknowledge my responsibility in maintaining and operating the Service in accordance with the Council’s procedures and practices 
that uphold the internal control and assurance framework.  

The information I have provided in this section is given to the best of my knowledge in connection with the service areas I am 
responsible for.  

I have made appropriate enquiries of other Council officers, and referred to information systems and records, and can confirm the 
following statements. Where I cannot give full assurance, I have given further information in the “Summary of evidence” column. 

Ref. Accounts – financial and legal implications Confirmed 
(yes/no) 

Summary of evidence, 
and planned action, if 

required 

2.1 Are there any contingent liabilities1 that are likely to have a significant effect on the 
finance or operations of the Council? 

  

2.2 Are there any instances of non-compliance with laws or regulations that are likely to 
significantly affect the Council’s finance or operations? 

  

2.3 Are there any post-balance sheet events2 likely to  significantly affect the Council’s 
finance or operations? 

  

2.4 Are there any pending claims, proceedings or litigation likely to significantly affect the 
Council’s finance or operations? (record your departments potential costs even if the 
issue is being dealt with on your behalf by another department.) 

  

                                            

1
 A “contingent liability” is a possible obligation arising from past events at the balance sheet date (31

st
 March 2010). Its existence will only be confirmed by 

future events which may not be within the Council’s control 
2
 A “post-balance sheet event” occurs between the balance sheet date (31

st
 March 2010) and the date the Council approves the financial statements. 

P
a
g
e
 5

3



 

 

Ref. Accounts – financial and legal implications Confirmed 
(yes/no) 

Summary of evidence, 
and planned action, if 

required 

2.5 Are there any other significant transactions with related parties other than those already 
disclosed? 

  

2.6 Are there any instances of known error, irregularity, including fraud, which are likely to 
have a significant effect on the finance or operations of the Council? 

  

2.7 All disposals of fixed assets during the year have been  recorded in the financial 
statements, (if not please give details in “summary of evidence” column) 

  

2.8 All impairments to fixed assets have been identified and accounted for in compliance 
with FRS113 (see note 3) 

  

 

 

Certified by: 

(Please note a signature is required) 

Director of:                                                                                                                 Date: 

 

                                            

3 FRS11’s objectives are:  

§ fixed assets and goodwill are recorded in the financial statements at no more than their recoverable amount 

§ any resulting impairment loss is measured and recognised on a consistent basis 

§ sufficient information is disclosed to enable users of the financial statements to understand the impact of the impairment on the Council’s 
financial position and performance. 

P
a
g
e
 5

4



AGENDA ITEM 6

Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Audit Progress 
Report

February 2010
Slough Council

Audit 2009/10

AGENDA ITEM 7

Page 69



Status of our reports 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit 
Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the audited 
body. Reports prepared by appointed auditors are addressed to
non-executive directors/members or officers. They are prepared for the sole use of the 
audited body. Auditors accept no responsibility to: 

any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or  

any third party.

Contents

2009/10 Audit Plan 3

Audit Commission national reports 7

The Audit Commission 11

Page 70



2
0
0
9
/1

0
 A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 

3
 

  
S

lo
u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 2
0
0
9
/1

0
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 

1
T

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

a
b
le

 s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 o
u
tp

u
ts

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 a

u
d
it
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
v
e
 d

a
te

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
fi
n
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 

re
p
o
rt

s
. 

T
h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 r
e
la

te
s
 o

n
ly

 t
o
 t

h
e
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 A

u
d
it
 a

n
d
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
s
 C

A
A

 r
e
la

te
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d

s
e
p
a
ra

te
ly

. 
T

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 o

n
 a

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 b

a
s
is

 a
n
d
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 t

ra
c
k
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 a

t 
o
u
r 

q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h

s
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 a

s
 a

 s
ta

n
d
in

g
 i
te

m
 t

o
 e

a
c
h
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

T
h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 i
n
fo

rm
A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

fo
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g
 a

u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
.

R
e

p
o

rt
A

C
 k

e
y
 

c
o

n
ta

c
t

C
o
u
n
c
il 

c
o

n
ta

c
t

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
R

e
p
o
rt

e
d

to
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e

C
o

m
m

e
n

t

A
u
d
it
 f

e
e
 l
e
tt
e
r 

a
n
d
 o

u
tl
in

e
 a

u
d
it
 p

la
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 

A
la

s
ta

ir
 

R
a
n
k
in

e
A

u
d
it

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
A

p
ri
l

2
0
0
9

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
 

A
g
re

e
d
  

 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
o
p
in

io
n
 p

la
n
 f

o
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

T
h
is

 o
p
in

io
n
 p

la
n
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
 t
o
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
2
0

0
9

/1
0

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

n
 u

p
d

a
te

 o
n

 o
u

r 
U

O
R

 r
is

k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
 

A
la

s
ta

ir
R

a
n
k
in

e
A

n
n
a
l 
N

a
y
a
r 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 
2
0
1
0

M
a

rc
h

2
0
1
0

T
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
o
p
in

io
n
 p

la
n
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
s
s
u
e
d
, 

d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d
 

a
g
re

e
d
. 

It
 i
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 o

n
 

th
is

 a
g
e
n
d
a
 

Page 71



2
0

0
9

/1
0

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 

S
lo

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 
4

S
h
a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

T
h

e
 f
o

c
u

s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

w
o

rk
 w

ill
 b

e
 t
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 o

u
tl
in

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

c
a

s
e

 f
o

r 
s
h

a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 o

p
ti
o

n
 

a
p

p
ra

is
a

l/
d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a
k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 r

e
g
a

rd
in

g
 i
ts

 f
u

tu
re

 
c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 t
h
e
 v

e
n
tu

re
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 a

s
s
e
m

b
le

d
 t
o
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 v

e
n
tu

re
 o

ff
e

rs
 g

o
o

d
 p

ro
s
p

e
c
ts

 f
o
r 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
. 
K

e
y
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 a

u
d
it
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
w

h
e
th

e
r:

 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 a

 s
o

u
n
d

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 
it
s
 c

o
s
ts

  

d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 i
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
a

n
d

 r
e

lia
b

le
 

d
a
ta

 a
n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
  

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

m
a

n
a

g
e

s
 i
ts

 r
is

k
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e

ly
  

A
la

s
ta

ir
R

a
n
k
in

e
E

liz
 F

ra
w

le
y
 

M
a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
0

 
A

 s
e
t 

u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 
o
n
 t

h
e
 8

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
0
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
s
 i
n
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s

P
re

-s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
u
d
it
 m

e
m

o
ra

n
d
u
m

 

T
h
is

 m
e
m

o
ra

n
d
u
m

 w
ill

 h
ig

h
lig

h
t 
is

s
u
e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

re
v
ie

w
 

a
n

d
 t
e

s
ti
n
g

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 a
d
d

re
s
s
 w

e
a
k
n
e

s
s
e

s
 i
n

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 

A
la

s
ta

ir
R

a
n
k
in

e
A

n
n
a

l 
N

a
y
a
r 

M
a
y
 

2
0
1
0

 
N

o
t 

y
e
t 

d
u
e
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

  
(I

S
A

2
6
0
) 

T
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 s
e
ts

 o
u

t 
th

e
 k

e
y
 i
s
s
u
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
y
o

u
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
o
n

s
id

e
r 

b
e

fo
re

 a
u

d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 a

c
c
o
u

n
ts

 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n
d

 b
e

fo
re

 
th

e
 o

p
in

io
n

 a
n

d
 V

F
M

 c
o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 i
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d

 

P
h
il

S
h
a
rm

a
n

A
u
d
it

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
/

J
u
lie

 E
v
a

n
s
 

S
e
p
t

2
0
1
0

 
N

o
t 

y
e
t 

d
u
e
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 o
p
in

io
n
 a

n
d
 V

F
M

 c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 o

u
r 

o
p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n

ts
 t
h
e
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
A

u
d
it
 

P
h
il

S
h
a
rm

a
n

A
u
d
it

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
/

J
u
lie

 E
v
a

n
s
 

S
e
p
t

2
0
1
0

 
N

o
t 

y
e
t 

d
u
e
 

Page 72



2
0
0
9
/1

0
 A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 

5
 

  
S

lo
u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 r
e
q

u
ir
e

s
 u

s
 t
o

 i
s
s
u
e

 a
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
y
o

u
 

h
a

v
e

 p
ro

p
e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
s
e
c
u

ri
n

g
 e

c
o
n

o
m

y
, 

e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 
y
o

u
r 

re
s
o
u

rc
e
s
. 
 

O
u

r 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
ly

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
 

F
in

a
l 
A

c
c
o

u
n
ts

 m
e
m

o
ra

n
d
u
m

 

T
h

is
 m

e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ta

in
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 P

C
T

’s
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ri
ly

 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

re
p

o
rt

 

A
la

s
ta

ir
R

a
n
k
in

e
A

n
n
a

l 
N

a
y
a
r 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

 
N

o
t 

y
e
t 

d
u
e
 

U
s
e
 o

f 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

U
s
e
 o

f 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

  
 -

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
T

h
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d

 y
e
a
r 

o
f 
th

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il.

 O
u

r 
w

o
rk

 w
ill

 i
n

fo
rm

 o
u
r 

s
c
o
re

d
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
re

e
 t
h
e
m

e
s
: 

 -
 M

a
n

a
g

in
g

 m
o

n
e

y
 

 -
 M

a
n

a
g

in
g

 t
h

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

 -
 M

a
n

a
g

in
g

 o
th

e
r 

re
s
o
u

rc
e
s
 

Y
e

a
r 

o
n
e

 h
a
s
 g

iv
e

n
 u

s
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 b

a
s
e

lin
e
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 

a
s
 a

 s
ta

rt
in

g
 p

o
in

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
tw

o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t.
 T

h
is

 m
e

a
n
s
 

w
e

 w
ill

 b
u

ild
 o

n
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
o
u
r 

2
0

0
9

 w
o
rk

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

C
A

A
 b

y
 c

o
n

d
u

c
ti
n

g
 a

 g
a

p
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 a
n
d

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ri
n
g

 t
w

o
 k

e
y
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
: 

W
h

a
t 
h

a
s
 c

h
a
n

g
e

d
?

 

W
h

a
t 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
/d

if
fe

re
n

c
e
s
 h

a
v
e

 r
e
s
u

lt
e

d
 a

s
 a

 c
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

?
 

A
la

s
ta

ir
R

a
n
k
in

e
/

K
a

m
S

h
a
rg

ill

K
e
v
in

G
o
rd

o
n

/J
u
lie

 E
v
a
n

s
 

S
e
p
t

2
0
1
0

 
G

a
p
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

s
h
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d
 a

n
 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
ro

u
n
d
ta

b
le

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 h

e
ld

 o
n
 t

h
e
 1

6
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
0
. 

T
h
is

 e
n
a
b
le

d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 i
n
it
ia

l 
re

s
p
o

n
s
e
 

to
 t

h
e
 g

a
p
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 a
n

d
 t

o
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
 a

 t
im

e
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

o
ff

e
ri
n

g
 a

n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 f

o
r 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 h

ig
h
lig

h
t 

a
re

a
s
 

Page 73



2
0

0
9

/1
0

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 

S
lo

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 
6

o
f 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r.

 

U
s
e
 o

f 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

 -
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 p

la
n
n
in

g

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 i
s
 a

 n
e

w
 l
in

e
 o

f 
e

n
q

u
ir
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

s
e

 o
f 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 
T

o
 a

u
g

m
e
n

t 
o

u
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 h

o
w

 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

a
lo

n
g

 w
it
h

 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 i
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 
a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 t
o

 t
h

is
 i
s
s
u
e

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d

 i
n

to
 o

u
r 

U
s
e

 
o
f 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 b
u
t 
th

e
re

 m
a
y
 b

e
 s

c
o
p
e
 t
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
u
r 

fi
n

d
in

g
s
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
ly

. 
W

e
 w

ill
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
n

 o
p

e
n

 d
ia

lo
g

u
e

 w
it
h

 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

. 

K
a

m
S

h
a
rg

ill
K

e
v
in

G
o

rd
o

n
/

J
u
lie

 E
v
a

n
s
 

T
o
 b

e
 

a
g
re

e
d

 
A

u
d

it
 i
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

U
s
e
 o

f 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

- 
m

e
d
iu

m
 t

e
rm

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
p
la

n
n
in

g

W
e

 w
ill

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 c
lo

s
in

g
 i
ts

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 
g

a
p
s
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 2

0
1
0

/1
1

 b
u

d
g

e
t 
a

n
d

 m
e
d

iu
m

 t
e

rm
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

c
y
c
le

s
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
o
u
r 

U
s
e
 o

f 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

b
u
t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 f
in

d
in

g
s
. 

A
la

s
ta

ir
R

a
n
k
in

e
J
u
lie

 E
v
a

n
s
/ 

A
n
n
a

l 
N

a
y
a
r 

T
o
 b

e
 

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

A
u

d
it
 i
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 L

e
tt

e
r 

2
0
1
0

P
h
il

S
h
a
rm

a
n

C
a

b
in

e
t/

R
u

th
 B

a
g

le
y
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 

 
N

o
t 

y
e
t 

d
u
e
 

Page 74



A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

re
p

o
rt

s
 

7
 

  
S

lo
u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
s

2
T

h
is

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 l
is

ts
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
's

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
tu

d
ie

s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 g
u

id
e
 a

s
 t

o
 w

h
e
n
 t

h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

s
 a

re
 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
h
ig

h
lig

h
ti
n

g
 t

h
e
s
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
s
 f

ir
s
tl
y
 f

o
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
ly

 t
o
 

h
e
lp

 i
n
 d

e
te

rm
in

in
g
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

a
n
y
 w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 

is
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 o

f 
a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

m
o
re

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 i
n
 t

a
k
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 i
ts

 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 o

r 
d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 i
ts

 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
.

3
T

h
e
 t

a
b
le

 l
is

ts
 t

h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
tu

d
y
 t

it
le

; 
p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 s
h
o
rt

 s
u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 

c
o
v
e
ra

g
e
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 t

h
e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 d

a
te

 o
f 

p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
. 

4
It
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t

o
 u

p
d
a
te

 t
h
is

 o
n
 a

 r
o
lli

n
g
 b

a
s
is

 a
t 

e
a
c
h
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

n
d
 a

ls
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 r

a
is

e
 a

n
y
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 o

r 
is

s
u
e
s
 o

n
 a

n
 a

re
a
 t

h
a
t 

m
ig

h
t 

b
e
 o

f 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
in

te
re

s
t 

to
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 R
e
p
o
rt

s
 a

re
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
's

w
e
b
s
it
e
: 

(w
w

w
.a

u
d

it
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
.g

o
v
.u

k
/n

a
ti
o
n
a
ls

tu
d

ie
s
/)

 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
tu

d
ie

s
 

S
c
o
p
e

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 /

a
c
tu

a
l 

d
a
te

 o
f 

p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o

n

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 S

tu
d

ie
s
 

W
h
e
n
 i
t 
c
o

m
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

ru
n
c
h
 

T
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d

 i
n
 a

 s
e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 r

e
p
o

rt
s
 l
o
o

k
in

g
 a

t 
h

o
w

 l
o

c
a

l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

re
 

re
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 r

e
c
e
s
s
io

n
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 f
in

d
s
 t
h

a
t 
lo

c
a

l 
a

n
d
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
h

a
v
e
 m

a
d

e
 a

 
p

o
s
it
iv

e
 i
n

it
ia

l 
re

s
p
o

n
s
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
e
s
s
io

n
, 
b

u
t 
it
 w

a
rn

s
 t
h

a
t 
c
o

u
n

c
ils

 s
h

o
u

ld
 p

re
p
a

re
 f
o

r 
w

o
rs

e
n

in
g

 s
o
c
ia

l 
im

p
a
c
t 
a
s
 u

n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
ri
s
e
s
. 
D

e
m

a
n
d
 f
o
r 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

, 
w

e
lf
a

re
 a

n
d

 h
e

lp
 w

it
h

 d
e
b

t 
a

re
 g

ro
w

in
g

, 
a

n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
p

ro
b

le
m

s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 m

e
n
ta

l 
ill

-h
e
a
lt
h
 a

re
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 f
o
llo

w
 a

s
 t
h

e
 r

e
c
e

s
s
io

n
 

d
e

e
p
e

n
s
. 
 

C
ru

n
c
h
 I
II
 -

 C
u
rr

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

 w
h
ic

h
 b

u
ild

s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 e

x
p
lo

re
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

th
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 r

e
c
e
s
s
io

n
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
u
b
lic

 b
o
d
ie

s
. 
 

A
u

g
u

s
t 
2

0
0

9
 

D
u

e
 w

in
te

r 
2
0

0
9

/1
0

 

Page 75



A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

re
p

o
rt

s
 

S
lo

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 
8

M
e

a
n
s
 t
o

 a
n

 e
n

d
 

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
 t
h

e
 j
o

in
t 
fi
n

a
n

c
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 c

a
re

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 N

H
S

 b
o

d
ie

s
 a

n
d

 
c
o

u
n

c
ils

 w
it
h

 a
d

u
lt
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
. 
It

 b
u

ild
s
 o

n
 o

u
r 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 p

u
b

lic
a

ti
o
n

, 
C

la
ri
fy

in
g
 j
o

in
t 

fi
n

a
n

c
in

g
 a

rr
a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
, 
th

a
t 
e
x
p
la

in
e
d
 t
h
e
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a
l 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 l
e
g
is

la
ti
v
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

jo
in

t 
fi
n

a
n

c
in

g
. 

It
 c

o
n

s
id

e
rs

 h
o

w
 t
h

e
s
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 a

re
 u

s
e

d
, 
fo

c
u

s
in

g
 o

n
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

ili
ty

, 
m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 -

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
e

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

rs
 m

o
s
t 
o

ft
e

n
 n

e
e

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
. 
 

T
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

's
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
n

o
ta

b
le

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 a
im

 t
o

 h
e

lp
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
b

o
d

ie
s
 

b
e
tt
e
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t
h
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

, 
h
o
w

 t
o
 u

s
e
 t

h
e
m

 a
n
d
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

. 
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0

9
 

P
ro

te
c
ti
n
g

 t
h
e
 P

u
b
lic

 P
u
rs

e
 

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 c
o
n

s
id

e
rs

 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 f
ra

u
d

 r
is

k
s
 a

n
d

 p
re

s
s
u
re

s
 f
a

c
in

g
 c

o
u

n
c
ils

 a
n

d
 r

e
la

te
d

 b
o

d
ie

s
 a

n
d

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 

g
o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 f
ig

h
ti
n
g
 f
ra

u
d
. 
It
 h

a
s
 n

e
v
e
r 

b
e
e
n
 m

o
re

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
th

a
t 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

 f
ig

h
t 
fr

a
u
d
. 
E

v
e
ry

 p
o
u
n
d
 

lo
s
t 
to

 c
h

e
a

ts
 i
s
 a

 p
o

u
n
d

 t
h

a
t 
c
a

n
n
o

t 
b

e
 u

s
e
d

 f
o

r 
p

e
o
p
le

 i
n

 r
e

a
l 
n

e
e
d

. 
T

h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 r
is

k
s
 

th
a
t 
a
re

 o
ft
e
n
 n

o
t 
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

ly
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
, 
to

 d
o
 w

it
h

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 t
e
n
a
n
c
y
, 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
fr

a
u
d
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 f
o

u
n

d
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 t
e

n
a

n
c
y
 f
ra

u
d

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 t
y
in

g
 u

p
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
5

0
,0

0
0

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o

n
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 w

o
rt

h
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 £
2

 b
ill

io
n

, 
w

h
ile

 q
u

e
u
e

s
 f
o

r 
h

o
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

y
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 
5

0
 p

e
r 

c
e

n
t 
o
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 
s
ix

 y
e

a
rs

. 
T

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 n
e
e

d
 o

f 
s
o

c
ia

l 
h

o
u
s
in

g
 i
s
 p

re
d

ic
te

d
 t
o

 r
is

e
 t
o

 2
 

m
ill

io
n
 b

y
 2

0
1
1
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
p
a
y
e
rs

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 l
o
s
in

g
 a

lm
o

s
t 
£
2
 m

ill
io

n
 a

 w
e

e
k
 t
o

 f
ra

u
d

s
te

rs
 c

la
im

in
g

 a
 2

5
 p

e
r 

c
e

n
t 
s
in

g
le

 
p

e
rs

o
n

 d
is

c
o
u

n
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
ir
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

ta
x
. 
T

h
e

 d
is

c
o

u
n

t 
c
a
n

 b
e

 c
la

im
e

d
 b

y
 h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 w

h
e
re

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 
o

th
e

r 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

g
e
d

 1
8

 o
r 

o
v
e

r 
liv

in
g

 a
t 
a

n
 a

d
d
re

s
s
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

n
 o

v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 t
h

re
a

ts
 o

f 
fr

a
u
d
 f
a
c
in

g
 c

o
u
n

c
ils

. 
It
 c

a
lls

 o
n
 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 u

rg
e
n
tl
y
 

re
a
s
s
e

s
s
 t
h

e
ir
 c

o
u
n

te
r 

fr
a

u
d

 p
la

n
s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
s
ta

ff
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
, 
a
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 f
a
it
h
 i
n
, 
w

h
is

tl
e
-b

lo
w

in
g
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

 

N
o
th

in
g
 b

u
t 
th

e
 t
ru

th
 

T
h

e
 h

ig
h
-p

ro
fi
le

 f
a

ilu
re

 o
f 
p
u

b
lic

 a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 t
o

 b
o

th
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 B
a

b
y
 P

e
te

r 
in

 H
a
ri
n
g

e
y
, 
a

n
d

 p
re

v
e

n
t 
th

e
 

h
ig

h
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d

e
a

th
s
 i
n

 M
id

-S
ta

ff
o

rd
s
h

ir
e

 N
H

S
 F

o
u
n
d

a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t,
 h

a
s
 d

ir
e
c
te

d
 a

tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

c
c
u
ra

c
y
 

a
n
d
 r

e
lia

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 d

a
ta

 u
n
d
e
rp

in
n
in

g
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 

It
 i
s
 n

o
t 
a
 m

a
tt
e
r 

o
f 
q
u
a
n
ti
ty

; 
w

e
 h

a
v
e
 m

o
re

 d
a
ta

 a
b
o
u
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
n

 w
e
 c

a
n
 r

e
a
lis

ti
c
a
lly

 u
s
e
. 
Y

e
t 
th

e
 

p
u
b
lic

 l
a
c
k
s
 t
ru

s
t 
in

 t
h
e
 i
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
g
o

v
e
rn

 a
n
d
 s

e
rv

e
 i
t 
- 

a
n
d
 t
h
is

 m
is

tr
u
s
t 
e

x
te

n
d
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

th
e
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
. 

T
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 e

x
is

ts
 t
o
 r

e
a
s
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 t
h

a
t 
lo

c
a

l 
p
u

b
lic

 b
o

d
ie

s
 a

re
 s

p
e
n

d
in

g
 t
h

e
ir
 m

o
n

e
y
 w

e
ll 

a
n

d
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n

 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
. 
T

h
e

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 h

a
s
 a

 r
o

le
 i
n

 a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
d

a
ta

 i
n

 l
o

c
a

l 
p
u

b
lic

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
 p

u
b

lic
 p

ro
m

is
e

 t
o

 h
e
lp

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 i
t.

 

T
h

is
 p

a
p

e
r 

s
e
ts

 o
u

t 
im

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
is

s
u
e

s
 a

s
 t
h

e
 b

a
s
is

 f
o

r 
d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o

 e
n
s
u
re

 d
a

ta
 a

b
o
u

t 
lo

c
a

l 
p
u

b
lic

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
s
 f
it
 f
o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
. 
It
 a

s
k
s
 i
f 
c
it
iz

e
n
s
, 
a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h
 f
ro

n
tl
in

e
 s

ta
ff
, 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

, 
p
o

lit
ic

ia
n
s
, 
c
e
n
tr

a
l 

N
o

v
e

m
b
e

r 
2
0
0

9
 

Page 76



A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

re
p

o
rt

s
 

9
 

  
S

lo
u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 r
e

g
u

la
to

rs
, 
c
a

n
 h

a
v
e

 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d

a
ta

 t
h
e
y
 r

e
ly

 o
n
. 
A

n
d
 i
f 
n
o
t,
 

w
h

a
t 
n

e
e

d
s
 t
o

 b
e

 d
o

n
e

 a
b
o

u
t 
it
?

 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
a
n
 

a
g

in
g

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 

T
h

e
 s

tu
d

y
 w

ill
 e

x
p

lo
re

 h
o
w

 l
o

c
a

l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 p

la
n

 t
h

e
ir
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
 f
o

r 
a

n
 a

g
e

in
g

 p
o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
, 
a

n
d

 h
o

w
 t
h

e
y
 

ta
k
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 l
o

c
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

It
 w

ill
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

h
o

w
 t
h

e
ir
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o
n

 t
o

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f
o

r 
o

ld
e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

fl
u

e
n
c
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
d

e
c
is

io
n

s
, 
a

n
d

 h
o

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 f
in

a
n
c
e

 d
e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
s
e

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
. 
 

T
h

e
 s

tu
d

y
’s

 o
u

tp
u

ts
 w

ill
 s

h
o

w
 h

o
w

 l
o
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 c

a
n

 m
a

k
e

 b
e

s
t 
u

s
e

 o
f 
d

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h

ic
 a

n
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 c
o

s
t 

d
a

ta
 t
o

 p
la

n
 a

h
e

a
d

 f
o

r 
a
n

 a
g

e
in

g
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
. 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0
1

0
 

G
iv

in
g

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

 h
e

a
lt
h

y
 s

ta
rt

 
T

h
is

 r
e

p
o
rt

 a
s
s
e
s
s
e

s
 t
h

e
 l
o
c
a

l 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
o
lic

y
 f
ro

m
 1

9
9
9
 t
o
 2

0
0
9
 o

n
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 f
ro

m
 b

ir
th

 t
o
 f
iv

e
 y

e
a
rs

 o
f 
a
g
e
 i
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 

It
 e

x
a
m

in
e
s
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 s
e
tt

in
g

, 
a

n
d

 h
o
w

 l
o

c
a

l 
b

o
d

ie
s
 c

a
n

 
im

p
ro

v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 b

la
c
k
 a

n
d

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 (
B

M
E

) 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
, 
lo

n
e

 a
n

d
 t
e

e
n

a
g

e
 p

a
re

n
ts

. 

T
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e
s
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
fu

n
d

in
g

 o
n

 h
e
a

lt
h

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 f
o
r 

th
e

 u
n

d
e
r-

fi
v
e
s
; 
h

o
w

 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 l
o
c
a
l 
b
o
d
ie

s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
; 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 
to

 w
h
ic

h
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 g

o
o
d
 v

a
lu

e
 f
o
r 

m
o

n
e

y
. 
It

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti
o
n

s
 f
o

r 
n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
b
o

d
ie

s
, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 e

x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
n
o

ta
b

le
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

. 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
0

 

F
u

tu
re

 s
tu

d
ie

s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e
n

t 
in

 c
o

u
n

c
ils

 
'S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 l
o

c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t' 

w
ill

 r
e
v
ie

w
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

' 
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 t
o
 a

llo
c
a
te

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
ir
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
, 
c
h
o

o
s
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 c
o

m
p
e

ti
n

g
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e

s
, 
a

n
d
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

o
f 
th

e
ir
 p

la
n
s
. 
It
 w

ill
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 i
n

 W
o
rl

d
 

c
la

s
s
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t.

T
h

e
 s

tu
d

y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 h
e

lp
 c

o
u
n

c
ils

 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h

e
 a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e
s
 o

f 
a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 p
re

p
a
re

 f
o

r,
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
 t
o

, 
th

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 f
is

c
a
l 
c
lim

a
te

. 

S
p

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

0
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

s
p

e
c
ts

 
o

f 
p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
ts

  
In

 2
0
0
7
, 
th

e
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 P

u
tt
in

g
 P

e
o
p
le

 F
ir
s
t 
w

h
ic

h
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
it
s
 i
n

te
n

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
 a

d
u

lt
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
. 
In

 i
ts

 v
is

io
n

 o
f 
p

e
rs

o
n
a

lis
e
d

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
, 
th

e
 g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
e

x
p

e
c
ts

 c
o

u
n
c
ils

 t
o

 o
ff

e
r 

p
e

rs
o
n

a
l 
b

u
d
g

e
ts

 
to

 a
ll 

th
o

s
e

 e
lig

ib
le

 f
o

r 
a

d
u

lt
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

. 
T

h
ir
te

e
n

 c
o
u

n
c
ils

 s
ta

rt
e

d
 a

 p
ilo

t 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
p

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b

u
d

g
e

ts
 

in
 2

0
0

5
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
s
o

c
ia

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 n
o
w

 o
ff
e
r 

s
o
m

e
 f
o
rm

 o
f 
p
e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b
u
d
g
e
t.
 

H
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 f
o

r 
m

a
n

y
 c

o
u
n

c
ils

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
b

u
d

g
e

ts
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

w
o

rk
 i
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 
s
e

v
e

ra
l 
a

s
p

e
c
ts

 f
o

r 
w

h
ic

h
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 s

in
g

le
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 

E
a
rl
y
 2

0
1
0
 

Page 77



A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

re
p

o
rt

s
 

S
lo

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 
1
0

A
d

a
p

ta
ti
o

n
 t
o
 c

lim
a

te
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 

T
h

is
 s

tu
d

y
 w

o
u

ld
 f
o

llo
w

 o
n

 f
ro

m
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n

t 
o

u
r 

re
s
e
a

rc
h

 o
n

 m
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 (

re
d

u
c
in

g
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 C

O
2

 
e

m
is

s
io

n
s
).

 I
t 
w

o
u

ld
 e

x
a

m
in

e
 h

o
w

 w
e

ll 
c
o

u
n
c
ils

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

ir
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 t
o

g
e

th
e
r 

to
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

d
 

re
s
p

o
n
d

 t
o

 v
u

ln
e

ra
b

ili
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 c

lim
a

te
 c

h
a

n
g

e
. 

S
u

m
m

e
r 

2
0

1
0

 

Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 V

F
M

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 m
o

re
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c

o
s
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
T

h
is

 s
tu

d
y
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 c
o
u

n
c
ils

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 c

o
s
ts

 b
e
tt

e
r 

a
n

d
 m

a
k
e
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 
c
o

s
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
.

A
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
1
0
 

O
ld

e
r 

te
e
n

a
g
e

rs
 n

o
t 
in

 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 (

N
E

E
T

s
) 

T
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 n
o
t 
in

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 h

a
s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

tl
y
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 

1
0

 p
e

r 
c
e

n
t 
le

v
e

l 
s
in

c
e

 t
h

e
 1

9
9

0
's

, 
e

v
e

n
 w

it
h

 l
a

rg
e

 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.
 T

h
is

 s
tu

d
y
 w

ill
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
w

h
a
t 
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f
o
r 

th
e

 N
E

E
T

 a
g

e
n

d
a

, 
h

o
w

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e

d
 a

n
d

 w
h

a
t 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

S
u

m
m

e
r 

2
0

1
0

 

Page 78



The Audit Commission 

11   Slough Council 

The Audit Commission 

The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog, driving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in local public services to deliver better outcomes for everyone. 

Our work across local government, health, housing, community safety and fire and rescue 
services means that we have a unique perspective. We promote value for money for 
taxpayers, auditing the £200 billion spent by 11,000 local public bodies.  

As a force for improvement, we work in partnership to assess local public services and 
make practical recommendations for promoting a better quality of life for local people. 

Copies of this report 

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille, on tape, or in a 
language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070. 

© Audit Commission 2008 

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: 

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ  

Tel: 0844 798 1212  Fax: 0844 798 2945  Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk

Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



Certification of 
claims and 
returns - 
annual report 
Slough Borough Council   

Audit 2008/09 

February 2010 

AGENDA ITEM 8

Page 81



 

 

Slough Borough Council  2

 

Contents 
Key messages 3 

Background 5 

Findings 6 

Appendix 1 – Summary of 2008/09 certified claims 8 

Appendix 2 – Action plan 10 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 82



Key messages 

 

3   Slough Borough Council 

 

Key messages 
Funding from government grant-paying departments is an important income stream 
for the Council. The Council needs to manage claiming this income carefully. It 
needs to demonstrate to its auditors that it has met the conditions which attach to 
these grants.  

This report summarises the findings from the certification of 2008/09 claims. It 
includes the messages arising from my assessment of your arrangements for 
preparing claims and returns and information on claims that we either amended or 
qualified. 

Certification of claims  

1 Slough Borough Council receives more than £191million funding from various grant-
paying departments (from note 39 accounts) (excluding business rates).The grant-
paying departments attach conditions to these grants and the Council must be able to 
demonstrate that it has met these conditions. If the Council cannot evidence 
compliance, then funding can be at risk. It is therefore important that the Council 
manages certification work properly and can demonstrate to us, as auditors, that the 
relevant conditions have been met.  

2 In 2008/09, my audit team certified claims and returns with a total value of £222 
million, including business rates of £82m and council tax benefits of £8m. Of these, we 
carried out a limited review of three claims and a full review of six claims. (Paragraph 
13 explains the difference).  

3 We amended two out of the nine claims we audited (HRA main subsidy (HOU01) and 
the HRA base data return (HOU02)) to adjust for errors identified arising from our audit 
and furthermore we were unable to fully certify these claims due to a number of 
unresolved issues. As a consequence we issued qualification letters to the grant-
paying body accordingly. Appendix 1 sets out a summary.  

4 The fees I charged for grant certification work in 2008/09 (to the end of December 
2009) were £43,155. 

Significant findings  

5 Three claims were submitted late for audit. These were the Housing and Council Tax 
Benefits Scheme, General Sure Start Grant, and the Pooling of Housing Capital 
Receipts Return.  

6 All claims and returns were submitted for audit without a complete set of supporting 
working papers. 

7 An absence of quality assurance over the claims compilation process and a 
breakdown in accountability were principal factors giving rise to the qualification of the 
HRA Base Data Return and main subsidy claims.  For details see 'Findings'.  

Page 83



Key messages 

 

Slough Borough Council  4

 

8 Unqualified certification was issued on all other claims and returns.  

Actions  

9 Appendix 2 summarises my recommendations. The relevant officers of the Council 
have already agreed these recommendations and their responses are set out in the 
attached action plan.  

 

 

Page 84



Background 

 

5   Slough Borough Council 

 

Background  

 

10 The Council claims £191m for specific activities from grant paying departments. As this 
is significant to the Council’s income it is important that this process is properly 
managed. In particular this means: 

• an adequate control environment over each claim and return; and 

• ensuring that the Council can evidence that it has met the conditions attached to 
each claim.  

11 I am required by section 28 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 to certify some claims 
and returns for grants or subsidies paid by the government departments and public 
bodies to Slough Borough Council. I charge a fee to cover the full cost of certifying 
claims. The fee depends on the amount of work required to certify each claim or return.  

12 The Council is responsible for compiling grant claims and returns in accordance with 
the requirements and timescale set by the grant paying departments.  

13 The key features of the current arrangements are as follows. 

• For claims and returns below £100,000 the Commission does not make 
certification arrangements. 

• For claims and returns between £100,000 and £500,000, auditors undertake 
limited tests to agree form entries to underlying records, but do not undertake any 
testing of eligibility of expenditure. 

• For claims and returns over £500,000 auditors assess the control environment for 
the preparation of the claim or return to decide whether or not they can place 
reliance on it. Where reliance is placed on the control environment, auditors 
undertake limited tests to agree from entries to underlying records but do not 
undertake any testing of the eligibility of expenditure or data. Where reliance 
cannot be placed on the control environment, auditors undertake all of the tests in 
the certification instruction and use their assessment of the control environment to 
inform decisions on the level of testing required. This means that the audit fees for 
certification work are reduced if the control environment is strong.  

• For claims spanning over more than one year, the financial limits above relate to 
the amount claimed over the entire life of the claim and testing is applied 
accordingly. The approach impacts on the amount of grants work we carry out, 
placing more emphasis on the high value claims.  

 

Page 85



Findings 

 

Slough Borough Council  6

 

Findings  

Control environment  

14 We placed reliance on the control environment for two claims, the Pooling of Housing 
Capital Receipts Return and the Teachers' Pensions Return. We could not place 
reliance for any other claims and returns. This is because claims and returns are not 
subject to a centrally administrated and monitored control environment.  

15 This means that we have to assess the control environment on a claim-by-claim basis, 
some of which met the required standard and some of which did not. While 
departments are aware of their departmental reporting responsibilities, they are not 
always aware of what is required to comply with external standards. This would be 
rectified by the Council taking the following action ( see action plan) : 

• Early identification of mandatory claims and returns, including ongoing monitoring 
of potentially new sources of grant funding; 

• Ongoing monitoring of submission deadlines and compliance with grant terms and 
conditions;  

• Maintenance of comprehensive supporting documentation. This includes audit 
support and analytical review for 'headline' figures and links to source documents 
such as invoices, virement approvals, bases of estimation and apportionments, etc; 

• Ongoing monitoring of cash flow and effective budgetary control; 

• Internal audit assurance that claim 'systems' have operated satisfactorily over the 
period covered by the claim;   

• Evidence of supervision and review over those involved in claim preparation. 

  

Specific claims  

HOU02 - Housing Base Data Return 

16 Significant amendments were made to the Housing Base Data Return (HOU02), which 
was also subject to a qualified certificate due to errors across six separate testing 
criteria. This situation arose because the responsible officer at People 1st (Slough) 
was absent for much of 2008/09 and the Council did not have monitoring 
arrangements in place over the claims/return control environment to compensate for 
this lapse in arrangements. 

17 The most significant qualification issue relating to the return, which also impacts on the 
financial statements of the Council as a potentially material misstatement, was that 
People 1st recorded a different housing stock total to the Council's Capital and 

Page 86



Findings 

 

7   Slough Borough Council 

 

Property teams. This arose because the different departments have not regularly 
reconciled their housing stock totals.  

18 For future improvements the council should: 

• Ensure that there is a preparing officer in place at People 1st and arrangements 
are in place to monitor his/her activity within the wider control environment, as 
recommended at paragraph 15. 

HOU01 - HRA main subsidy claim 

19 The claim was certified late, but qualified because of a £6m difference between entries 
in the worksheet pre-populated by the grant paying department and the grant return. 
The Council believe that the difference relates to prior year special determination 
adjustments that have been carried forward incorrectly in the worksheet which, if this 
turns out to be so, means that there will be no subsidy implications. 

20 The underlying reason is the same as highlighted for HOU02 (above), notably, the lack 
of a responsible officer at People 1st during 2008/09 which led to late preparation of 
supporting documentation and, in turn, left no time available for query resolution before 
the submission deadline. 

 

 

  

 

Page 87



 Appendix 1 – Summary of 2008/09 certified claims  

 

Slough Borough Council  8

 

Appendix 1 – Summary of 2008/09 certified claims  

Claims and returns above £500,000  
 

Claim Value 

£ 

Adequate control 
environment 

Amended Qualification letter 

Housing and council tax 
benefit (BEN01) 

5,395,642 N/a - subject to 
mandatory audit 

testing 

No No 

HRA subsidy base data 
return (HOU02) 

471,640,998 
(stock value) 

No Yes Yes 

HRA main subsidy (HOU01) 19,277,580 No Yes Yes 

Teacher's pensions return 
(PEN05) 

8,653,059 Yes No No 

General Sure Start grant 
(EYC02) 

3,253,112 No No No 

National non-domestic rates 
return (LA03) 

84,043,000 No No No 

Pooling of housing capital 
receipts (CFB06) 

2,796,370 Yes No No 

P
a
g
e
 8

8



Appendix 1 – Summary of 2008/09 certified claims 

 

9   Slough Borough Council 

 

Claims between £100,000 and £500,000   
 

Claim Value 

£ 

Adequate control 
environment 

Amended Qualification letter 

Disabled facilities grant 
(HOU21) 

356,000 N/A No No 

P
a
g
e
 8

9



 Appendix 2 – Action plan  

 

Slough Borough Council  10

 

Appendix 2 – Action plan 
 

Page 
no. 

Recommendation Priority 
1 = Low 
2 = Med 
3 = High 

Responsibility Agreed Comments Date 

 Annual Claims and Returns Report 2008/09 - Recommendations 

6 Claims and returns should be 
centrally monitored to facilitate: 

• Early identification of 
claims and returns; 

• Ongoing compliance with 
terms, conditions and 
deadlines. 

 

3  
Head of Central 
Accountant/Head 
of Departmental 
Finance 

Agreed .A register of claims and returns is 
kept centrally 

The relevant service accountant 
ensures compliance with terms and 
conditions and deadlines. 

 

Implemented 

6 All claims and returns should be 
submitted for audit accompanied 
by adequate supporting 
documentation. This includes 
system support and year-on-year 
analytical review for 'headline' 
figures, and links to source 
documentation such as invoices 
and approvals. 

3 Head of 
Departmental 
Finance 

Agreed A file is produced by the relevant 
officer/accountant with supporting 
documentation. 

Implemented 

P
a
g
e
 9

0



Appendix 2 – Action plan 

 

11   Slough Borough Council 

 

Page 
no. 

Recommendation Priority 
1 = Low 
2 = Med 
3 = High 

Responsibility Agreed Comments Date 

7 The Council should appoint an 
officer to monitor People 1st's 
compliance with the terms and 
conditions of grant claims and 
returns.  

3  
Sarah Hammond 
Director of 
Finance & 
Support Services 
People 1st 
(Slough) Ltd 

 

Agreed 

 

Post holder in place from 1st April 
2010- as per correspondence 
received of 4th Feb 2010 

1 April 2010 

7 The council should ensure that all 
sources of housing stock data are 
regularly reconciled to ensure 
consistency of numbers and 
compliance with the conditions of 
the HRA base data return. 

3  
Sarah Hammond 
Director of 
Finance & 
Support Services 
People 1st 
(Slough) Ltd 

Agreed The role of the new post holder as 
per correspondence of 4th Feb 2101 

1 April 2010 

6 All working papers submitted for 
audit should show evidence of 
supervision and review by the 
appropriate responsible officer. 

2 Head of 
Departmental 
Finance 

Agreed A signed off checklist is submitted 
with the working paper file. 

Implemented 

6 Internal Audit assurance should 
be sought that claim 'systems' 
have operated satisfactorily over 
the period covered by the claim. 

1 Head of Internal 
Audit 

Agreed Internal Audit check that systems 
operate satisfactorily on any claim 
certified by them. They also have a 
yearly programme to ensure that all 
systems operate satisfactorily. 

Implemented 

P
a
g
e
 9

1



 Appendix 2 – Action plan  

 

Slough Borough Council  12

 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 9

2



 

 

The Audit Commission 
The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog, driving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in local public services to deliver better outcomes for everyone. 

Our work across local government, health, housing, community safety and fire and rescue 
services means that we have a unique perspective. We promote value for money for 
taxpayers, auditing the £200 billion spent by 11,000 local public bodies.  

As a force for improvement, we work in partnership to assess local public services and 
make practical recommendations for promoting a better quality of life for local people. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Copies of this report 

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille, audio, or in a 
language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070. 

 

© Audit Commission 2009 

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: 

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ  

Tel: 0844 798 1212  Fax: 0844 798 2945  Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 93



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 9

Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the last meeting held on 3rd December 2009
	3 Internal Audit Plan 2010/11
	4 Internal Audit 3rd Quarter Update
	5 Annual Governance Statement Overview 2009/10
	6 Signed Annual Governance Statement 2008/09
	7 Audit Progress Report
	8 Certification of Claims and Returns - Annual Report
	9 Audit Opinion Plan 2009/10

